To the Board of Commissioners
Lansing Housing Commission

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated November XX,
2017 on our consideration of Lansing Housing Commission's internal control over financial reporting and
on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, grant agreements,
and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control
over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on
the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering Lansing Housing
Commission's internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

February 28, 2018



Lansing Housing Commission
Lansing, Michigan

Management’s Discussion and Analysis

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017

This management’s discussion and analysis (MD&A) of Lansing Housing Commission provides an
overview of the Commission’s financial performance during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017. The
operations of the Lansing Housing Commission are comprised of a Low Income Public Housing Program,
a Housing Choice Voucher program, a Capital Fund Program, a Section 8 New Construction Program,
and a Resident Opportunity and Supportive Services Program. The Low Income Public Housing Program
is funded with tenant rental revenue, miscellaneous tenant charges, and De’; rtment of Housing and
Urban Development (HUD) grants and subsidies. The remaining programs are: unded entirely by federal
grants. The Commission also maintains a central office cost center, various busmess activities, and
component units. This MD&A covers only the Commission’s primary government activities, including its
blended component unit and the Lansing Housing Commission Non Profit Development Corporation
(LHCNPDC), and do not analyze the financial position or current year activity of the discretely presented
component unit - Oliver Gardens LDHA Limited Partnership (Oliver Gardens). Please read this summary
along with the accompanying audited financial statements of the Commission for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2017. The audited financial statements of OI|ver Gardens have been presented in the financial
statements of the Commiission. f

Financial Highlights

I. Total assets exceed total liabilities by | $ 16,592,680
2. Unrestricted net posmon equals . 2,281,993

3. Total net pcsltion mcreased by 189,747
Required FlnanC|al Statements e

The financial statements of the Commission have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting
following: the busmess-type activities reporting requirements of the Governmental Accounting Standards
ingle enterprise fund ‘These statements are as follows:

«+ Statement of 'net-position - mcludes all of the Commission’s assets and liabilities and provides
information about-the amounts and investments in assets and the obligations to commission
creditors. It also brovides a basis of assessing the liquidity and financial flexibility of the Commission.
Over time, increases or decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the
financial health of the Commission is improving or deteriorating.

. Statement of revenue, expenses, and changes in net position - provides information as to the increase
or decrease of current year revenue over expenses.

.- Statement of cash flows - provides information about the Commission’s cash receipts and
disbursements during the reporting period. The statement discloses net cash provided by or used in
operating activities and noncapital financing activities from capital and related financing activities and
from investing activities.



Assets

Current and restricted assets
Capital assets
Noncurrent assets

Total assets

Deferred Outflows of Resources

Total assets and deferred
outflows of resources

Liabilities
Current liabilities
Long-term liabilities
Total liabilities

Deferred Inflows of Resources

Net Position
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted B
Unrestricted

Total net pbsition

Financial Analysis

Statement of Net Position

Percent

2016 2017 Change Change
$ 6,090,137 $ 5335778 $ (754359) -12%
15,647,363 15,562,494 (84,869)  -1%
909,675 924,330 14,655 2%
22,647,175 21,822,602 . (824573)  -4%
992,302 1,017,239 24937 3%
23,639,477 22,839,841 (799.636)  -3%
880792 630,636 }’jf-:l‘(‘25'0.I56) -28%
6273462 _ 5481415 _(792047) -I3%
7154254 6112051  (1,042203)  -15%
82290 135,110 52,820  64%
13,195,546 = 13,268,885 73,339 1%
952,587 1,041,802 89215 9%
2,254,800 2,281,993 27,193 1%
$ 16,402,933 $ 16,592,680 $ 189,747 1%

As illustrated in the statement of net position, the overall net position of the Commission increased by
$189,747 primérily as a result in a decrease in current and long-term liabilities net of decreases in current
and capital assets.:Current assets decreased primarily due to a decrease in cash and an overall decrease in
accounts receivable due from HUD. There were no large new capital asset projects in the current year

and as a result net’ capital assets decreased by normal depreciation.

The increase in noncurrent assets

was due to an increase'in the COCC investment in Oliver Gardens. Current liabilities decreased primarily
due to the decrease in the actuvuty of accounts payable related to the insignificant purchases of capital
assets. While there was an increase in OPEB liabilities, the decrease in net pension liability led to an
overall decrease in noncurrent liabilities.



Financial Analysis
(Continued)

Statement of Activities

Percent
2016 2017 Change Change
Revenue
Tenant rental revenue $ 1,717,181 $ 1,655,669 §$ 61,512) 4%
Federal grants 17,108,785 15,562,618 (1,546,167) 9%
Other revenue 1,500717 1,580,120 79403 5%
Total revenue 20,326,683 18,798,407 -(1,528.276) - 8%
Administrative expenses 3,169,731 3,064,073 (1 05;6'58); o
Tenant services 21976 41,195 19.219 ~ 87%
Utilities 769,111 893,395 124284  16%
Maintenance and operations 2,108,351 2,392,757 - . 284,406 13%
Insurance and general expenses 430,957 450813 e 19.856 5%
Housing assistance payments 9,970,034 10,404,199 434.{“65 4%
Depreciation and amortization 1,358,328 15273,346 (84.982) 6%
Interest expense 86744 _ . 88,882 2,138 2%
Total expenses 17915232 - I8.6Q8A:\660*‘ - 1693428 4%
Change in Net Position $ 2,411,451 $. 189,747 $ (2',22],704) 92%
Revenue

In reviewing the statement»bf‘ferénue and expenses, you will find that 83 percent of the Commission’s
revenue is derived from grants-from the Department of Housing and Urban Development, 9 percent of
the Commission’s revenue is from dwelling rent,and 8 percent is from investment income and other
income. - - ' '

Expenises.

In reviewing the statement of revenue and expenses, you will find that 56 percent of the Commission’s
expenses are for housing assistance payments, 16 percent for administrative, 5 percent are for utilities, 13
percent are for maintenance, 7 percent are for depreciation and amortization, and 3 percent are for
tenant services, protective services, general expenses, and interest expense.

Change in Net Position

Although there was a significant decrease in overall revenue during fiscal year 2017, the Commission
increased the net position due to effective management of expenses. The overall revenue decrease was
primarily a result of decrease in the federal grant revenue received under the Continuum of Care
program and the Public Housing Capital Fund program. Noted increases in tenant services, utilities,
maintenance and operations, and housing assistance payments were there result of high occupancy rates
exceeding 97 percent. Other expenses fluctuated at relatively expected amounts due to changes in
salaries, benefits, and other housing operating expenditures with the net effect on expenditures
consistent overall to the prior year.



Financial Analysis
(Continued)

Capital Assets

As of year end, the Commission had $15,562,493 invested in a variety of capital assets as reflected in the
following schedule, which represents a net decrease (additions, deductions and depreciation) of |

percent from the end of last year.

Percent
2016 2017 Change Change
Land $ 1,554,771 $ 1,554,771 $ - - 0%
Buildings 48,743,568 49,742,492 998,924 2%
Furniture and equipment 1,541,301 1,353,588 (187,713) -12%
Construction in progress 2,245,979 2,331,065 - 85,086 '
Accumulated depreciation (38,438,256) (39,419,422) (981,166)
Net capital assets $ 15,647,363 $ 15562494 $  (84,869) -1%
The following reconciliation summarizes the change in capiml assets
Beginning balance - July 1,2016 - $ 15647363
Additions: -
Construction in progress 911,341
Building and improvements 290,099
Fumlture and eqmpment 37,558
Disposals net of deprecuatlon (50,521)
Deprecnatlon expense ‘ (1,273,346)

Ending balance - fure 30, 2017

Debt Outstanding

$ 15,562,494

As of the end of the f scal year,’ the Commission had $2,293,609 in debt outstanding compared to
$2,451,817 in the prevnous year. The net change in debt for the year was a decrease of $158,208 of

principal payments.

Note payable - Davenport
Note payable - PNC

Total long-term debt

Long-term Debt
2016 2017
$ 522,879 $ 474,903
1,928,938 1,818,706

$ 2,451,817 $ 2,293,609




Financial Analysis
(Continued)

Economic Factors and Events Affecting Operations

Factors that may affect the financial position of the Commission in the subsequent fiscal year are as
follows:

¢ Federal funding appropriations as budgeted by Congress for funding to the Department of Housing
and Urban Development

e Local labor supply and demand, which can affect salary and wage rates and the need to contract
more work because of employee hiring challenges :

e Union contract negotlatlons

e Local inflationary, recessionary and employment trends, whlch can. affect r
therefore the amount of rental income '

o Inflationary pressure on utility rates, supplies, and other costs |

¢ Pay down of underfunded pension liability

the Commlssm is also i

oard (GASB). Statement No. 68 as of
ancial reporting by state and local
: :her entities. The Commission

In the current year and for future years, the financial positic L
Commission’s adoption of Governmental Accounting:Stan
July 1, 2014. The objective of which is to improve accounting
employers about financial support for pensions that-is prowded ,
participates in an agent multiple-employer defined benef t pensm an” administered by the Municipal
Employees Retirement System of Michigan (MERS) that co employees of the Commission. The
Commission’s net pension liability for :this plan is determ ed “annually using a measure of the total
pension liability and the penswn net posit n at the end of each calendar year.

(REAC) mission is to provide and promote accurate information in

ing portfolio. The Commission receives periodic physical

valuation provided by REAC. This performance data provides an
ousmg Commission compares to its peers. The Commission did
during the fiscal year ended june 30, 2017.

Conclusion

The Commission’s manage int is committed to staying abreast of regulations and appropriations as well
as maintaining an ongoing analysis of all budgets and expenses to ensure that the Commission continues
to operate at the highest standards established by the Real Estate Assessment Center and the
Department of Housing and Urban Development.

Contact

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the Commission’s finances for all those
with an interest. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or requests for
additional financial information should be addressed to Martell Armstrong, Executive Director, Lansing
Housing Commiission, 419 Cherry, Lansing, Ml 48933, or call (517)372-7996.



Lansing Housing Commiission

Statement of Net Position

june 30, 2017

Discrete
Primary Component
Government Unit - Oliver
(LHC) Gardens
Assets and Deferred Outflows of Resources
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 2) $ 3278089 $ 33,994
Cash and cash equivalents - Restricted (Note 2) 1,070,995 300,878
Tenant security deposits - Restricted (Note 2) 127,326 4,406
Receivables:
Tenant receivables : e 23,555 -
Accrued interest receivable S 34,555 -
Other receivables , 229,461 2,336
Due from other governmental units - HUD 4,292 -
Allowance for doubtful accounts T (2,356) -
Investments (Note 2) . 512,144 -
Prepaid expenses and other assets o 51,77 3,783
Total current assets o - 5,335,778 345,397
Noncurrent Assets _—
Investment in partnership 924,230 -
Other assets 100 7,638
Capital Assets - Nondepreciable (Note 3) 3,885,836 685,162
Capital Assets - Net of depreciation (Notes 3) 11,676,658 1,933,967
Total assets 21,822,602 2,972,164
Deferred Outflows of Resources - Pension (Note 5) 1,017,239 -
Total assets and deferred outflows of resources $ 22,839,841 $ 2,972,164

The Notes to Financial Statements are an
Integral Part of this Statement. 9



Lansing Housing Commission

Statement of Net Position (Continued)
june 30, 2017

Discrete
Primary Component
Government Unit - Oliver
(LHC) Gardens
Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources, and Net Position
Current Liabilities
Accounts payable - Operating $ 162,072 $ 3,685
Security deposits liability 160,051 4,528
Accrued liabilities and other:
Accrued PILOT 64,909 17,915
Accrued interest : el - 49,799
Accrued salaries and wages - 56,391 -
Compensated absences < | year .. 17,528 -
Other current liabilities - 73,005
Accrued partnership management fees - 90,000
Notes payable - Current portion (Note 4) - 169,685 29,818
Total current liabilities . 630,636 268,750
Noncurrent Liabilities
Notes payable - Net of current portion (Note 4) 2,123,924 2,524,965
Compensated absences 99,325 -
Net OPEB obligation (Note 6) _ 1,865,920 -
Net pension liability (Note 5) Sl 1,363,053 -
Other noncurrent liabilities o 29,193 822,312
Total liabilities . 6,112,051 3,616,027
Deferred Inflows of Resources - Pension (Noté 5) 135,110 -
Net Position : f .
Net investment in capital assets o 13,268,885 31,255
Restricted o 1,041,802 -
Unrestricted 2,281,993 (675,118)
Total net position 16,592,680 (643,863)
Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources, and net
position $ 22,839,841 $ 2,972,164

The Notes to Financial Statements are an
Integral Part of this Statement. 10



Lansing Housing Commission

Statement of Activities
Year Ended june 30, 2017

Discrete
Primary Component
Government Unit - Oliver
(LHC) Gardens
Operating Revenue
Tenant revenue - Net $ 1,655,669 $ 260,063
HUD operating revenue 14,670,381 -
Other grant revenue 1,362,750 -
Other operating revenue 250,669 -
Total operating revenue a ‘:1'27‘,939,469 260,063
Operating Expenses L
Administrative ‘ 3,064,073 23,488
Tenant services 41,195 -
Utilities . 893,395 67,907
Maintenance 2,392,757 20,886
Insurance 252,021 14,348
Other general expenses 198,792 49,912
Housing assistance payments 10,404,199 -
Depreciation and amortization ‘ 1,273,346 140,260
Total operating expenses 18,519,778 316,801
Operating Loss e (580,309) (56,738)
Nonoperating Income (Expenses) » e
Investment income S 5,926 20,968
Interest expense (Note 4) (88,882) (94,858)
Loss on sale of assets B (39,225) -
Total nonoperating expenses (122,181) (73,890)
Gain (Loss) - Before contributions (702,490) (130,628)
Capital Contributions - Capital grants - HUD 892,237 -
Change in Net Position 189,747 (130,628)
Net Position - Beginning of year 16,402,933 (513,235)
Net Position - End of year $ 16,592,680 $ (643,863)

The Notes to Financial Statements are an
Integral Part of this Statement. I



Lansing Housing Commission

Statement of Cash Flows
Year Ended june 30, 2017

Primary
Government
Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Cash received from HUD operating subsidies and grants $ 15,074,461
Cash received from tenants 1,678,290
Other receipts 1,486,066
Cash payments for housing assistance (10,404,199)
Cash payments for administrative expenses (3.064,073)
Cash payments for other operating expenses (4.990,091)
Net cash used in operating activities (219,546)
Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities
Receipt of capital grants B 892,237
Proceeds from sales of capital assets ST 342,697
Purchase of capital assets o (1,238,994)
Principal and interest paid on capital debt (247,090)
Net cash used in capital and related financing activities (251,150)
Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Interest received on investments 3,977
Purchase of investment securities (2,888)
Net cash provided by investing activities 1,089
Net Decrease in Cash and Cash Equivalents - ‘ (469,607)
Cash and Cash Equivalents - Beginning of year - 4,946,017
Cash and Cash Equivalents - End of year $ 4,476,410
Balance Sheet Classification of Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents $ 3,278,089
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 1,070,995
Tenant security deposits 127,326
Total cash and cash equivalents $ 4,476,410

The Notes to Financial Statements are an
Integral Part of this Statement. 12



Lansing Housing Commission

Statement of Cash Flows (Continued)
Year Ended jJune 30, 2017

Reconciliation of Operating Loss to Net Cash from Operating Activities

Operating loss $  (580,309)
Adjustments to reconcile operating loss to net cash from operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 1,273,346
Bad debts 120,832
Deferred outflows and inflows 27,883
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Receivables 305,869
Prepaid and other assets (481,510)
Accounts payable (297,270)
Security and other trust deposits 20,060
Accrued and other liabilities : (608,447)
Net cash used in operating activities : - $  (219,546)

The Notes to Financial Statements are an
Integral Part of this Statement. 13



Lansing Housing Commission

Notes to Financial Statements
june 30, 2017

Note | - Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Pelicies

Organization and Program Descriptions

The Lansing Housing Commission (LHC or the "Commission") is a Michigan public body
corporation operating as a public housing authority under the Michigan Housing Facilities
Act, MCL 125.65 to provide decent, safe, and adequate housing for low-income
program participants. The Commission owns and provides subsidy and operation
support for housing units located throughout the Lansing area. LHC's assets, liabilities,
net position, and changes in net position are included in its primary government fund and
include all AMPs, COCC, business activities, and programs of the Commission. The
Commission receives and administers funds from the U.S. Department of Housing and
Urban Development (HUD) and has signed an annual contributions contract (ACC)
under the provisions of the ACC and all applccable provisions of the United States
Housing Act of 1937 (42 U.S.C 1437 Section I.1). The ACC allows the Commission to
obtain financial support from HUD and provide low-income housing throughout Lansing.
The Commission administers the following significant programs:

Low-rent Public Housing - The Commission owns, operates, and maintains 833 units
of public housing in four properties throughout the city of Lansing. The Low Rent
Housing Assistance Program is designed to provide subsidized housing to low-income
individuals who pay monthly rent in accordance with prescribed rent formulas based on
family income limits. Revenue consists primarily of this rental income, other tenant fees
collected, and an operating subsidy from HUD

Housing Choice Voucher Program (HCVP) - Section 8 of the Housing and
Community Development Act of 1974 provides Housing Assistance Payments on behalf
of lower-income families to participating housing owners. Under the program, the
landlord-tenant relatlonshlp is between a housing owner and a family, rather than the
Commission and a family. as in the Public Housing program. HUD contracts with the
Commission to enter into contracts with owners to either make assistance payments or
to pay the difference between the approved contract rent and the actual rent paid by
the lower-income families. Housing assistance payments made to landlords and some
participants are funded through annual contributions contracts, as well as the
administrative cost of managing the program up to a per-unit limit established in the
contracts. The Commission administered an average of 1,552 tenant-based vouchers
monthly for the year ended June 30, 2017.

Capital Fund Program (CFP) - Funds from the Capital Fund Program provided by
HUD are used to maintain and improve the Public Housing portfolio. Substantially all
additions to land, structures, and equipment for these properties are accomplished by
using capital grant funds.



Lansing Housing Commission

Notes to Financial Statements
june 30, 2017

Note | - Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Continuum of Care Program (Shelter Plus Care and Permanent Supportive
Housing) - This program provides rental assistance to homeless individuals and families
with disabilities. The Commission is a subrecepient of the funding from the City of
Lansing.

Recovery Agreement and Action Plan

On September 25, 2014, the Commission was deS|gnated as a troubled agency by HUD
based on a failing Public Housing Assessment System audited financial score. When a
public housing agency is determined to be substandard it is asked to provide an
assessment of its deficiencies from its own self dmgnosns and identify solutions to recover
its performance for long-term sustainability. The_ Commission has completed its Public
Housing Agency Recovery and Sustainability Assessment and on January 6, 2016,
entered into a Recovery Agreement and Action Plan WIth HUD. The Commission began
submitting monthly progress reports to the local- HUD Field Office commencing on
March 1, 2016 and every month thereafter. The monthly reports will continue until the
Recovery Agreement is terminated. These financial statements have not been modified
for this status.

Reporting Entity

The nucleus of the financial reporting entity, as defined by Governmental Accounting
Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 14, as amended, is the primary government. A
fundamental characteristic of a primary government is that it is a fiscally independent
entity. In evaluation of ‘how-to define the financial reporting entity, management has
considered all potential component units. A component unit is a legally separate entity
for which the primary government is financially accountable. The criteria of financial
accountability is the appointment of a voting majority plus the ability of the primary
government to impose its will upon the potential component unit. These criteria were
considered in determining the reporting entity.

The five-member board of commissioners of LHC is appointed to five-year terms by the
mayor of the City of Lansing, but the Commission board independently oversees the
Commission's operation and designates its management. The City of Lansing is not
financially accountable for the Commission as it cannot impose its will on the
Commission, and there is no potential for the Commission to provide financial benefits
to, or impose financial burdens on, the City of Lansing. Accordingly, the Commission is
not a component unit of the financial reporting entity of the City of Lansing.



Lansing Housing Commission

Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2017

Note | - Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

GASB Statements |4, 39, 61 and 80 define a primary government and those
organizations that should be reported as component units. The following organizations
have been determined under this guidance to be component units of the Commission.

Blended Component Units - One component unit, despite being legally separate, is
so integrated with the primary government that it is in substance part of the primary
government. The Commission has included as a blended component unit in business
activities the operations of Lansing Housing Commission Non Profit Development
Corporation (LHCNPDC), a nonprofit organization. LHCNPDC has a 99 percent
ownership interest in Oliver Gardens, LLC. The Commlss:on has financial accountability
for the nonprofit and controls its board of dlrectors and’ management. As of June 30,
2017, LHCNPDC had assets of $830,41 1, liabilities of $879,491, and net deficit position
of ($49,080). The total revenue and change in net pdsmon was $93,321 for the year
ended June 30, 2017. .

Discretely Presented Component Unit - The component unit column in the financial
statements includes the financial data of the Commission's legally separate component
unit, Oliver Gardens LDHA Limited Partnership, which meets the criteria for discrete
component presentation. The separate column presentation clearly distinguishes the
component unit balances and. transactions from that of the primary government. The
balances are presented as of December 31, 2016. A complete financial report can be
obtained at their administrative offices at 419 Cherry St., Lansing, Ml 48933.

The Commission has a | percent managing member ownership interest in Oliver
Gardens, LLC, which has a 0.0 percent general partner ownership interest in Oliver
Gardens LDHA Limited?'l?artnership (Oliver Gardens). Oliver Gardens is a residential
apartment complex in Lansing, Michigan consisting of 30 low-income housing units. The
Commission does have financial accountability for Oliver Gardens, but it does not have
majority ownership of the entity.

Oliver Gardens follows all applicable Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB)
standards. Since it does not follow governmental accounting for presentation purposes,
certain transactions may be reflected differently in these financial statements than in the
separately issued discrete component unit financial statements in order for them to
conform to the presentation of the primary government.



Lansing Housing Commiission

Notes to Financial Statements
june 30, 2017

Note | - Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Basis of Accounting and Presentation

The basic financial statements of the Commission have been prepared on the accrual
basis of accounting in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America (GAAP), as prescribed by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board (GASB). The Commission follows the business-type activities reporting
requirements of GASB Statement No. 34, which provides a comprehensive one-line
look at the Commission’s financial activities. The Commission reports all of its
operations as a single business activity in a single enterprise fund. The enterprise fund is
a proprietary fund, which distinguishes operating ‘revenue and expenses from
nonoperating items. The operating revenue of the Commission consists primarily of
rental charges to tenants, operating grants from HUD, and other operating revenue that
offsets operating expenses. Operating expenses include the cost of administrative,
tenant services, utilities, maintenance, protective services, general operations,
depreciation, and housing assistance payments. '

As a proprietary fund, revenue is recorded when earned-and expenses are recorded
when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. The
Commission's financial activities operate in a manner similar to private business
enterprises and are financed through fees and charges assessed primarily to the users of
the services. For financial reporting purposes, the Commission considers its grants
associated with operations as operating revenue because these funds more closely
represent revenue generated from .operating activities rather than nonoperating
activities. Grants associated with capital acquisition and improvements are considered
capital contributions and are presented after nonoperating activity as capital
contributions on the accompanying statement of activities.

Budgets - The Commission is required by its HUD annual contributions contracts to
adopt annual budgets for the Low Rent Public Housing Program and the Housing Choice
Vouchers Program. Annual budgets are not required for the Capital Fund Program, as
those budgets are approved for the length of any given project. Annual, project, and
grant length budgets require grantor approval.

Appropriations are authorized at the function level. Management may transfer budget
authorization between functions. All appropriations that are not used lapse at year end.
Budgeted amounts are as originally adopted or as amended by the board.



Lansing Housing Commiission

Notes to Financial Statements
june 30, 2017

Note | - Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Assets, Liabilities, and Net Position

Cash and Cash Equivalents - Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on hand and all
highly liquid investments purchased with an original maturity of three months or less.

Current Receivables and Recognition of Bad Debts - Current receivables consist
of revenue that is earned at year end but not yet received. Tenant accounts generally
are collectible as long as the tenant is occupying the unit; however, the Commission has
established an allowance of $2,356 as potentially uncollectible as of June 30, 2017.
Tenant bad debt for the year ended June 30, 2017 was $120, 832

Prepaid Expenses - Prepaid items consist of certain- payments to vendors that reflect
costs applicable to future fiscal years.

Investment in Partnership - The amount of this investment.includes amounts invested
in and due from the Commission's discretely presented component unit, Oliver Gardens
LDHA LP. Of the amount due, $405,767 is for developer fees earned that are payable
from limited partner contributions or upon the availability of cash flow generated at the
operating partnership level.

Capital Assets - Purchased assets and self-constructed assets and certain
improvements are recorded as ‘assets at cost in accordance with the Commission's
capitalization policy. Costs equal or above the capitalization threshold of $2,500 that
materially add to the productive capacity and extend the life of an asset longer than one
year are capitalized, while malntenéhée and repair costs are expensed as incurred.
Property and equipment are deprecnated using the straight-line method over the
following useful lives:

Property»and,équipment Years
Buildings 40
Building improvements 7-40
Furniture and fixtures, equipment, and machinery 3-10

GASB Statement No. 42, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Impairment of Capital
Assets and for Insurance Recoveries, establishes accounting and financial reporting
standards for the impairment of capital assets. If an indicator of impairment is identified
and the decline in service utility was unexpected and significant, an impairment loss is
calculated in consideration of whether the capital asset will continue to be used by the
Commission. An impairment loss is generally measured by identifying the historical cost
of the service utility of the capital asset that cannot be used due to the impairment event
or circumstance. Impaired capital assets that will no longer be used by the Commission
are reported at the lower of carrying value or fair value, or written off entirely. During
2017, no impairments were recorded.

I8



Lansing Housing Commiission

Notes to Financial Statements
june 30, 2017

Note | - Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Restricted Cash - Restricted cash represents amounts held in escrow accounts in the
name of the entity for insurance and PILOT expenses, FSS escrows, Section 8 funds,
tenant deposits, and replacement reserves. Restrictions for use in operations and
approval are governed by HUD, lender requirements, or other outside parties.

Other Noncurrent Assets - Other assets of the component unit include $22,917 of
costs related to obtaining tax credits, net of accumulated amortization. These costs have
been capitalized and are being amortized over |5 years using the straight-line method.
Amortization expense for the year ended June 30, 2017 was $1,527.

Compensated Absences - The Commission allows employees to accumulate earned

benefits attributable to services already rendered by the Commission's employees.
Employees are entitled to a specific amount of leave per month capped at 480 hours
total. Upon separation from employment, employees with 20 years of service hired
before December 31, 2009 are entitled to receive pay for 50 percent of their accrued
unused sick time, and employees with 25.years of service hired on or after January |,
2010 are entitled to receive pay for 25:percent of their accrued unused sick time. The
liability for accrued and unused leave was $116,853 at June 30, 2017, of which $17,528
is current and $99,325 is noncurrent.

Net Position - Net position is comprised of three categories: (1) net investment in
capital assets, (2) restricted, and (3) unrestricted. The Commission’s positive value of
unrestricted netrlpés.:ition in the primary government may be used to meet ongoing
obligations. When-an ‘expense is incqrifed for purposes for which both restricted and
unrestricted net assets are available,the Commission's policy is to first apply restricted
resources. Each component of net assets is reported separately on the statement of net
position.

i. Net investment in capital assets - This category consists of capital assets (including
restricted capital assets), net of accumulated depreciation and reduced by any
outstanding balances of mortgages, notes, or other borrowings that are attributable
to the acquisition, construction, and improvements of those assets.

ii. Restricted - This category equals the restricted cash of the Commission and consists
of net position restricted in their use by (|) external groups such as grantors,
creditors, or laws and regulations of other governments or (2) law through
constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

iii. Unrestricted - This category includes all of the remaining net position that does not
meet the definition of the other two categories.
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Note | - Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Revenue Recognition - The Commission receives funds from certain federal and other
agencies under various grant programs. Receivables are recorded based upon amounts
expended for the various programs for which funds have not been received, to the
extent grant limits have not been exceeded.

The Commission leases properties to tenants under various rental arrangements.
Payments from tenants are recognized as revenue in the period during which the
associated use of premises occurred.

Operating Revenue and Expenses - The Commission’s operating revenue includes
HUD and state/local in support of housing units and programs as well as other amounts
received from tenants for rent and other charges for services- provnded Operating
expenses are costs incurred during the operation of its primary housmg activities. Such
revenue and expenses are reported when earned or incurred, respectively.

The Commission also received a ROSS (Residght Opportunities & Self Sufficiency) Grant
from HUD in fiscal year 2017 to cover the costs of the service coordinator.

Capital Grants - The Commission records grants received for capital outlay as
contributions of capital grants. :

Nonoperating Revenue and Expenses -*Nonoperating revenue and expenses are
derived from transactions other than those’ associated with the Commission’s primary
housing operatlons and are reported as incurred, including investment activity.

Use of Estlmates "-.The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
accounting principles-generally accepted in the United States of America requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the
financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the
period. Actual results could differ.

Subsequent Events - The financial statements and related disclosures include
evaluation of events through and including January |5, 2018, which is the date the
financial statements were available to be issued.
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Note 2 - Deposits and Investments

Deposits and investments are reported in the financial statements as follows:

Primary
Government Component
(LHO) Unit
Cash and cash equivalents - Unrestricted $ 3,278,089 $ 33,994
Cash and cash equivalents - Restricted 1,070,995 300,878
Tenant security deposits - Restricted 127,326 4,406
Investments N 512,144 -
Total deposits and investments . § 4988554 $ 339,278

Michigan Compiled Laws Section 129.91 (Public Act 20 of 1943, as-amended) authorizes
local governmental units to make deposits and invest in the accounts of federally insured
banks, credit unions, and savings and loan associations that have offices in Michigan. The
law also allows investments outside the state of Michigan when fully insured. The local
unit is allowed to invest in bonds, securities, and other direct obligations of the United
States or any agency or instrumentality of the United States; repurchase agreements;
bankers’ acceptances of United States banks; commercial paper rated within the two
highest classifications, which matures not more than 270 days after the date of purchase;
obligations of the State of ‘Michigan or its:political subdivisions, which are rated as
investment grade; and mutual funds composed-of investment vehicles that are legal for
direct investment by local units of government in Michigan.

The Commission has designated two banks for the deposit of its funds. The investment
policy adopted by the board in accordance with Public Act 196 of 1997 has authorized
investment in bonds and ‘securities of the United States government and bank accounts
and CDs, but not the remainder of state statutory authority as listed above. The
Commission's deposits and investment policies are in accordance with statutory
authority.

The Commission's cash and investments are subject to several types of risk, which are
examined in more detail below:

Custodial Credit Risk of Bank Deposits - Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the
event of a bank failure, the Commission's deposits may not be returned to it. The
Commission does not have a deposit policy for custodial credit risk. At year end, the
Commission had $0 of bank deposits (certificates of deposit and checking and savings
accounts) that were uninsured and uncollateralized.
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Note 2 - Deposits and Investments (Continued)

Custodial Credit Risk of Investments - Custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the
event of the failure of the counterparty, the Commission will not be able to recover the
value of its investments or collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside
party. The Commission does not have a policy for custodial credit risk. At year end,
$262,144 of investment securities was uninsured and unregistered, with securities held
by the counterparty or by its trust department or agent but not in the Commission's
name.

Note 3 - Capital Assets

A summary of property and equipment by class |sas follows:

Balance S : Balance
Primary Government July 1,2016  Reclassifications  Additions Reductions  June 30,2017
Capital assets not being depreciated: B
Land $ 155477 § - 3 - $ - $ 1,554771
Construction in progress 2,245,979 (826,255) 911,341 - 2,331,065
Total nondepreciable assets 3,800,750 (826.255) 911,341 - 3,885,836
Capital assets being depreciated: .
Building and improvements 48,743,568 808,742 290,099 (99.917) 49,742,492
Furniture and fixtures, equipment, and L
machinery 1.541,301 17.513 37,558 (242,784) 1,353,588
Total depreciable capital
assets 50,284,869 826,255 327,657 (342,701) 51,096,080
Accumulated depreciation 38438,256 - - - (292,180) 1,273,346 39,419,422
Net capital assets being deprecméd 11,846,613 826,255 619,837 (1,616,047) 11,676,658
Net capital assets $ 15647363 $ - $ 1,531,178 $ (1,616,047) $ 15562494
Balance Balance
Component Unit : January 1, 2016 Additions Disposals 12/31/2016
Capital assets not being depreciated - Land - § 685,162 $ -8 -8 685,162
Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings and improvements 3,318,485 - - 3,318,485
Fumniture and equipment 188,459 - - 188,459
Subtotal 3,506,944 - - 3,506,944
Accumulated depreciation 1,432,717 140,260 - 1,572,977
Net capital assets being depreciated 2,074,227 (140,260) - 1,933,967
Net capital assets 2,759,389 $ (140,260) $ - 8 2,619,129
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Note 3 - Capital Assets (Continued)
Construction in Progress

Capital improvements made for LHC's low-rent housing units are financed by grant
funds provided by HUD under capital grants. Capital grants are awarded annually based
on a five-year comprehensive modernization plan submitted by the Commission.
Related construction in progress are costs incurred for the modernization of low-rent
units. When modernization projects are completed, HUD issues a modernization cost
certificate for each grant, closing out the grant for that year, and at which time
construction in progress for that grant is placed in service and transferred to the
buildings or improvements categories.

Note 4 - Long-term Debt
Primary Government

LHC's debt is comprised of a promissory note payable to Davenport University and a
lease with PNC for the Energy Performance Contract.

Davenport University

The Commission purchased an office building and land from Davenport University (the
"Lender") in 2012 for $950,000 with a $700,000 promissory note payable to the Lender.
The note bears an annual interest rate of 2.4 percent, which is subject to adjustment
concurrently with changes in-the ‘Lender's cost of funds. Equal monthly payments of
$5,000 are due beginning on July 28, 2012. The outstanding principal and interest
balance will be due when the note matures on June 28, 2022.

PNC

Energy Conservation Measures (ECMs), as defined in the Commission's Energy
Performance Contract (EPC) ‘dated December |1, 2013, are financed by PNC as
stipulated in the Master Equipment Lease-Purchase Agreement in the principal amount
of $2,051,375. This obligation was issued pursuant to the provisions of Act |8, Public
Acts of Michigan 1933 (Ex. Sess), as amended, and Chapter 260 of the Code of Ordinances
of the City of Lansing. HUD's Public Housing EPC program is an innovative financing
technique that uses cost savings from reduced energy consumption to repay the cost of
installing ECMs. The project is financed with a tax-exempt lease for a term of |5 years at
a fixed interest rate of 3.91 percent. PNC as the lender has a security interest in the
ECMs.
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Note 4 - Long-term Debt (Continued)
Component Unit

Oliver Gardens LDHA Limited Partnership (the "Partnership") has the following loans
outstanding as of December 31, 2016 that are secured by land and substantially all real
property owned by the Partnership:

Mortgage dated October 17, 2006 held by Michigan State Housing
Development Authority (MSHDA) in the amount of $1,775,482. The
mortgage bears interest at a rate of 5.5 percent. However, an amount
equal to 0.5 percent of interest is deferred until the mortgage principal
balance is paid in full. Monthly payments of principal and interest are
required in the amount of $8,961. Financing fees of $45415 were
incurred in connection with obtaining loans to rehabilitate the property.
These costs are being amortized over the term of the related debt and
are reported net of debt on the statement of net position. As of
December 31, 2016, total accumulated amortization related to these
costs was $12,324. Amortization expense was $1. 527 for the year
ended December 31, 2016 and has been .included as a:¢omponent of
interest expense on statement of activities Co $ 1,534,650

HOME loan dated June |, 2006 in the amount of $170,000. The loan is
held by the City of Lansing under the HOME Investments Partnership
Program and bears interest at a rate ‘of | percent per annum. Principal

and interest are due on the loan when it matures on December 31,
2041 o 170,000

Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) loan dated May 3I,
2006 in the amount of $550,000. Theloan is held by the City of Lansing
under the CDBG Program and bears interest at a rate of | percent per

annum. Principal and interest are due on the loan when it matures on
May 31, 2046 550,000

Lansing Housing Commission (LHC) note dated December 31, 2007 in
the amount of $300,133. The loan is held by LHC and bears an interest
rate of | percent per annum. Principal and interest are due on the loan

when it matures on January |, 2048 300,133
Total 2,554,783
Less current portion 29,818
Long-term portion $ 2,524,965
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Note 4 - Long-term Debt (Continued)

Primary Government

Future minimum principal and interest payments on the LHC promissory note with
Davenport to maturity for the years ending June 30 are as follows:

Principal Interest Total
2018 49,141 10,859 60,000
2019 301,000 4,000 305,000
2020 58,000 2,000 60,000
2021 59,000 I ,000 60,000
2022 7,762 609 8,371

Total payments  $ 474903 $ I8468 $ 493371

Future minimum principal and interest payments on LHC's Iease wuth PNC to maturity
for the years ending June 30 are as follows: .

Principal _Interest

2018 120,544 72,000
2019 131,000 67,000
2020 138,000 62,000
2021 144,000 56,000
2022 . 150,000 50,000
2023-2027 847,000 150,000
2028-2029 L 288,162 9,000

 Totalpayments $_ 1818706 $ 466,000
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Note 4 - Long-term Debt (Continued)

Component Unit

Future minimum principal and interest payments on long-term debt to maturity for the
years ending December 31 for the discretely presented component unit are as follows:

2017
2018
2019
2020
2021
2022-2026
2027-2031
2032-2036
2037-2041
2042-2046
2047-2048

Principal Interest
29,818 77,714
31,343 76,189
32,953 74,579
34,638 72,894
36,411 71,121

211,977 325,683
272,042 265,618
349,128 188,532
618,056 89,604
671,375 305,910
300,133 -

Total payments $ 2,587,874 $ 1,547,844

Changes in long-term debt for the yeag;epded June 30, 2017 (or December 31, 2016 for
the discretely presented component unit) are presented below:

Balance -
Beginning of sl Balance -
Year Additions Deletions End of Year Duein | Year
Primary government: e
Davenport $ 522879 $- - $  (47976) $ 474903 $ 49,141
PNC 1,928,938 - (110,232) 1,818,706 120,544
Total $ 2451817 $ - $ (158,208) $ 2293609 $ 169,685
Component unit:
MSHDA $ 1,596,108 $ - $ (28367) $ 1,567,741 $ 29,818
City of Lansing 720,000 - - 720,000 -
LHC 300,133 - - 300,133 -
Total $ 2616241 $ - $ (28367) $ 2587874 $ 29,818

Interest expense for the year ended June 30, 2017 was $88,882 for the primary
government and interest expense for the year ended December 31, 2016 was $92,033
for the discrete component unit, excluding $1,298 of amortization expense of financing
fees which has been reported as a component of interest expense on the statement of

activities.
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Note 5 - Agent Defined Benefit Pension Plan Description

Plan Description - The Commission participates in an agent multiple-employer defined
benefit pension plan administered by the Municipal Employees Retirement System of
Michigan (MERS), that covers all employees of the Commission. MERS was established
as a statewide public employee pension plan by the Michigan Legislature under PA 35
of 1945 and is administered by a nine-member retirement board. MERS issues a publicly
available financial report which includes the financial statements and required
supplemental information of this defined benefit plan. This report can be obtained at
www.mersofmichigan.com or in writing to MERS of Michigan at | 134 Municipal Way,
Lansing, Michigan 48917.

Benefits Provided - The Plan provides certain retirement, disability, and death benefits
to plan members and beneficiaries. PA 427 of 1984, as amended, established and
amends the benefit provisions of the participants in MERS.

The MERS plan covers employees in the general open division, employees hired after
May [, 2012, and exempt employees hired before May |, 2012.

Retirement benefits for employees in the open general division are calculated as 2.25
percent of the employee’s final three-year ‘average salary times the employee’s years of
service. Normal retirement age is 60. with early retirement at 55 with 15 years of
service. Early retirement age with reduced benefits is 50 with 25 years of service.
Vesting pericd is eight years. Employees are eligible for non-duty disability benefits after
eight years of service :and for duty-related disability benefits upon hire. Disability
retirement benefits are determined in the same manner as retirement benefits but are
payable |mmed|ately without an actuarial reduction. Death benefits equal 80 times the
employee’s final full-year salary. An employee who leaves service may withdraw his or
her contributions plus: any accumulated interest.

Retirement benefits for employees hired after May |, 2012 are calculated as 1.70
percent of the employee’s final three-year average salary times the employee’s years of
service. Normal retirement age is 60. Early retirement age with reduced beneifits is at
50 with 25 years of service or 55 with 15 years of service. Vesting period is eight years.
Employees are eligible for non-duty disability benefits after eight years of service and for
duty-related disability benefits upon hire. Disability retirement benefits are determined
in the same manner as retirement benefits but are payable immediately without an
actuarial reduction. Death benefits for a surviving spouse equal 80 percent of the
deceased member's accrued retirement allowance, computed in the same manner as a
service retirement allowance, based on service and final average compensation at the
time of death. An employee who leaves service may withdraw his or her contributions
plus any accumulated interest
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Note 5 - Agent Defined Benefit Pension Plan Description (Continued)

Retirement benefits for exempt employees hired before May |, 2012 are calculated as
2.25 percent of the employee's final three-year average salary times the employee's
years of service. Normal retirement age is 60 with early retirement at 55 with |5 years
of service. Early retirement age with reduced benefits is 50 with 25 years of service.
Vesting period is eight years. Employees are eligible for non-duty disability benefits after
eight years of service and for duty-related disability benefits upon hire. Disability
retirement benefits are determined in the same manner as retirement benefits but are
payable immediately without an actuarial reduction. Death benefits equal 80 times the
employee’s final full-year salary. An employee who leaves service may withdraw his or
her contributions plus any accumulated interest.

Benefit terms provide for annual cost-of-living adjustments to each employee’s
retirement allowance subsequent to the employee’s retirement date. The annual
adjustments are 3 percent, noncompounding.

Benefit terms, within the parameters established by MERS, are generally established and
amended by authority of the board of commissioners, generally after negotiations of
these terms with the affected unions. Police-and fire employees benefit terms may be
subject to binding arbitration in certain circumstances.

Employees Covered by Benefit Terms - At the December 31, 2016 measurement
date, the following employees were covered by the benefit terms:

Inactive plan members or beneficiaries currently receiving benefits 35

Inactive plan membgfs’"éntitled to but not yet receiving benefits 14

Active plan members —
Total emploYe,é_s;.;;overed by MERS 76

Contributions - Article 9, Section 24 of the State of Michigan Constitution requires that
financial benefits arising on account of employee service rendered in each year be
funded during that year. Accordingly, MERS retains an independent actuary to determine
the annual contribution. The employer is required to contribute amounts at least equal
to the actuarially determined rate, as established by the MERS retirement board. The
actuarially determined rate is the estimated amount necessary to finance the costs of
benefits earned by plan members during the year, with an additional amount to finance
any unfunded accrued liability. The employer may establish contribution rates to be paid
by its covered employees.

For the year ended June 30, 2017, the average active employee contribution rate was
5.0 percent of annual pay for all divisions and the Commission’s average contribution
rate was 19.66 percent in the open general division and 4.41 percent under the new
hires division of annual payroll.
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Note 5 - Agent Defined Benefit Pension Plan Description (Continued)
Net Pension Liability

The net pension liability reported at June 30, 2017 was determined using a measure of
the total pension liability and the pension net position as of December 31, 2016. The
December 31, 2016 total pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation
performed as of that date.

Changes in the net pension liability during the measurement year were as follows:

Increase (Decrease)

Total Pension  Plan Net Net Pension
Changes in Net Pension Liability Liability Position Liability
Balance at December 31, 2015 $ 9,188776 $ 6,686,668 $ 2,502,108
Service cost 126,678 - 126,678
Interest 714,076 - 714,076
Changes in benefits (349,397) - (349,397)
Differences between expected and R S
actual experience (140,946) - (140,946)
Contributions - Employer e 693,689 (693,689)
Contributions - Employee - 67,424 (67,424)
Net investment income - 743,039 (743,039)
Benefit payments, including refunds (651,805) (651,805) -
Administrative expenses - (14,686) 14,686
Miscellaneous other charges (521) (521) -
Net changes - (301,915) 837,140 (1,139,055)

Balance at Decembér 3;(;}20]6 $ 8886861 $ 7523808 $ 1,363,053
Pension Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of
Resources Related to Pensions

For the year ended June 30, 2017, the Commission recognized pension expense of
$951,902. At June 30, 2017, the Commission reported deferred outflows of resources
related to pensions from the following sources:
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Deferred Deferred
Outflows of Inflows of
Resources Resources
Difference between expected and actual experience ~ $ - $ 135110
Changes in assumptions 135,322 -
Net difference between projected and actual earnings
on pension plan investments 297,768 -
Employer contributions to the plan subsequent to the
measurement date : ... 584,149 -
Total $ 1,017,239 $§ 135110

Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resodkc‘e,s» related to pensions will be
recognized in pension expense as follows. These amounts are exclusive of the employer
contributions to the plan made subsequent to the: measurement date ($584,149), which
will impact the net pension liability in fiscal year 2018; rather than pension expense.

Years Ending
june30 Amount
2018 $ 168,687
2019 . ' 74,510
2020 95,652
2021 (40,869)

Actuarial Assumptions - The total pension liability in the December 31, 2016 actuarial
valuation was determined- using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all
periods included in the measurement:

Inflation ' 2.50%

Salary increases 3.75% In the long term, plus a merit and
longevity increase ranging from O to | |
percent

Investment rate of return 8.00 % Net of pension plan investment expense

Although no specific price inflation assumptions are needed for the valuation, the 3.75
percent long-term wage inflation assumption would be consistent with a price inflation
of 2.5 percent.
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Mortality rates were a blend of the RP-2014 Healthy Annuitant Mortality Tables, with
rates multiplied by 105 percent; RP-2014 Employee Mortality Tables; and RP-2014
Juvenile Mortality Tables, all with a 50 percent male and 50 percent female blend. For
disabled retirees, the RP-2014 Disabled Retiree Mortality Table with a 50 percent male
and 50 percent female blend is used to reflect the higher expected mortality rates of
disabled members.

The actuarial assumptions used in the December 31, 2016 valuation were based on the
results of the most recent actuarial experience study covering the period from January |,
2009 through December 31, 2013.

Discount Rate - The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 8.00
percent. The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumes that
employee contributions will be made at the current contribution rate and that employer
contributions will be made at rates equal to the dlfference between actuarially
determined contribution rates and the employee rate.

Projected Cash Flows

Based on those assumptions, the pension plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to
be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current active and inactive
employees. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan
investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the
total pension liability. V

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined
using a model in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return
(expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense, and inflation) are developed
for each major asset class.” These ranges are combined to produce the long-term
expected rate of return by Wélghtlng the expected future real rates of return by the
target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. The target allocation
and best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return as of December 31, 2016, the

measurement date, for each major asset class are summarized in the following table:

Long-term
Target Expected Real
Asset Class Allocation (%) Rate of Return
Global equity 58 % 5.00 %
Global fixed income 20 2.18
Real assets 12 4.23
Diversifying strategies 10 6.56
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The preceding target allocation was amended as of January |, 2017 to reduce the
previous allocation to global equity and global fixed income and to increase the allocation
of real assets and diversifying strategies. The target allocation as of January 1, 2017 will
be 55.5% global equity, 18.5% global fixed income, 13.5% real assets and 12.5%
diversifying strategies.

Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate - The
following presents the net pension liability of the Commission, calculated using the
discount rate of 8.00 percent, as well as what the Commission’s net pension liability
would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is | percentage point lower
(7.00 percent) or | percentage point higher (9.00 percent) than the current rate:

| Percent Current | Percent
Decrease  Discount Rate  Increase
(7.00%)  (8:00%) (9.00%)
Net pension liability of the o
Commission $ 2288989 $ 1,363,053 $ 577,944

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position - Detailed information about the plan’s fiduciary
net position is available in the separately issued financial report. For the purpose of
measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources, and deferred inflows
or resources related to pension and. pension expense, information about the plan’s
fiduciary net position and addition to/deduction from fiduciary net position has been
determined on the same basis as they are reported by the plan. The plan uses the
economic resources measurement focus and the full accrual basis of accounting.
Investments are stated at fair value. Contribution revenue is recorded as contributions
are due pursuant to legal requirements. Benefit payments and refunds of employee
contributions are recognized as expense when due and payable in accordance with the
benefit terms. '

Note 6 - Other Postemployment Benefits

Plan Description - The Commission provides retiree healthcare benefits to eligible
employees and their spouses. This is a single-employer defined benefit plan administered
by the Commission and is provided under a separate collective bargaining agreement on
health care. The plan does not issue a publicly available financial report.

32



Lansing Housing Commission
L _______________________________________________________________________________ ]
Notes to Financial Statements

june 30, 2017

Note 6 - Other Postemployment Benefits (Continued)

Funding Progress - For the year ended June 30, 2017, the Commission has estimated
the cost of providing retiree healthcare benefits through the alternative measurement
method permitted by GASB Statement 45 for employers in plans with fewer than 100
plan members. The valuation computes an annual required contribution which
represents a level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover
normal cost each year and amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities over a period not
to exceed 30 years. This valuation’s computed contribution and actual funding are
summarized as follows:

Annual required contribution (recommended) - $ 616,028
Interest on the prior year's net OPEB obligation N 2,746
Less adjustment to the annual required contribution i (61,132
Annual OPEB cost - 557,642
Amounts contributed: ‘
Payments of current premiums ' (64,552)
Advance funding -
Increase in net OPEB obligation 493,090
OPEB obligation - Beginning of year . 1,372,830

OPEB obligation - End of year _ $ 1,865,920
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The annual required contribution, the percentage contributed to the plan, and the net
OPEB obligation for the current and two preceding years as well as funding progress are

as follows:
Annual Required Percentage Net OPEB
Fiscal Year Ended Contribution * Contributed Obligation
6/30/17 $ 616,028 10.5 % $ 1,865,920
6/30/16 421,898 15.3 1,372,830
6/30/15 291,357 28.3 1,058,787
Actuarial Actuarial 7 UAAL as a
Value of Accrued Unfunded Funded Ratio  Covered Percentage
Actuarial Assets Liability =~ AAL(UAAL)  (Percent) Payroll of Covered
Valuation Date (a) (AAL) (b) (b-a) (ab) - (0 Payroll
6/30/17 $ - $2,850309 $2,850,309 - % $ I ;448,372 196.8 %
6/30/16 - 3,687,831 3,687,831 - 1,278,377 288.5
6/30/15 - 3,575,100 3,575,100 - 1,190,293 300.4

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions - Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve
estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions about the probability of
occurrence of events far into the future: Examples include assumptions about future
employment, mortality, and the healthcare cost trend. Amounts determined regarding
the funded status of the plan and the annual required contributions of the employer are
subject to continual revision as actual results are compared with past expectations and
new estimates are made about the future. The schedule of funding progress, presented
above, presents multl—year trend mformatnon about whether the actuarial value of plan
assets is increasing.or. decreasmg over tlme relative to the actuarial accrued liabilities for
benefits.

Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive plan
(the plan as understood by the employer and the plan members) and include the types
of benefits provided at the time of each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of
benefit costs between the employer and plan members to that point. The actuarial
methods and assumptions used include techniques that are designed to reduce the
effects of short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of
assets, consistent with the long-term perspective of the calculations.

As of June 30, 2017, the unfunded actuarial liability (UAAL) of $2,850,309 was equal to
the actuarial accrued liability (AAL).

The following simplifying assumptions were made:

Retirement age for active employees - Based on the historical average retirement age for
the covered group, active plan members were assumed to retire at age 55, or at the first
subsequent year in which the member would qualify for benefits.
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Marital status - Marital status of members at the calculation date was assumed to
continue throughout retirement. As of March 31, 1997, the policy changed to an
employee-only benefit without spouse coverage at retirement.

Mortadlity - Life expectancies were based on mortality tables from the National Center
for Health Statistics; the 2002 version (Tables 2 and 3 from the National Vital Statistics
Reports) for males and for females was used.

Turnover - Nongroup-specific age-based turnover data from GASB Statement 45 was
used as the basis for assigning active members a probability of remaining employed until
the assumed retirement age and for developing an expected future working lifetime
assumption for purposes of allocating to periods the present value of total benefits to be
paid.

Healthcare cost trend rate - The expected rate of increase in healthcare insurance
premiums was based on projections of the Office of the Actuary at the Centers for
Medicare & Medicaid Services. A rate of 5.0 percent was used initially, increased to an
ultimate rate of 5.9 percent after six years.

Health insurance premiums - 2015 health insurance premiums for retirees were used as
the basis for calculation of the present value of total benefits to be paid.

Inflation rate - A wage inflation rate of 1.5 percent was used based on Commission
budgets averaging from 0 to 2.5 percent. '

Payroll growth rate - The expected long-term payroll growth rate was assumed to equal
the rate of inflation. -

The Commission expects_little return over investment and has used a rate of .20
percent and a simplified version of the entry age actuarial cost method. The unfunded
actuarial accrued liability is being amortized as a level percentage of projected payroll on
an open basis. The remaining amortization period at june 30, 2017 was 30 years.

Note 7 - Commitments and Contingencies

The Commission receives financial assistance from federal and state agencies in the form
of grants. The disbursement of funds received under these programs generally requires
compliance with the terms and conditions specified in the grant agreements and is
subject to audit by the grantor agencies. Any disallowed claims resulting from such
audits could become a liability of the Commission. However, in the opinion of
management, any such disallowed claims will not have a material adverse effect on the
overall financial position of the Commission at June 30, 2017.
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Note 7 - Commitments and Contingencies (Continued)

The collective bargaining five-year agreement between the Housing Commission
Employees' and Chapter of Local 1390.11 and Michigan Council #25, AFSCME, AFL-
CIO covering approximately 60 percent of the Commission's labor force will be in place
from July I, 2014 through December 31, 2018.

Note 8 = Risk Management

The Commission is exposed to various risks of loss related to property loss, torts, errors
and omissions, and employee injuries (workers' compensation), as well as medical
benefits provided to employees. The Commission has purchased commercial insurance
for all risks of loss, included workers' compensation, employee health, and accident
insurance. Settled claims relating to the commercial insurance have not exceeded the
amount of insurance coverage in any of the past three fiscal years.

Note 9 - Concentrations

The Commission operates in a heavily regulated environment. The operations of the
Commission are subject to the administrative c[ii‘ectives, rules, and regulations of
federal, state, and local regulatory agencies, including, but not limited to HUD. Such
administrative directives, rules, and regulations -are subject to change by an Act of
Congress or an administrative change mandated by ‘HUD. Such changes may occcur with
little notice or inadequate funding to pay for the related costs and the additional
administrative burden to:comply with the changes.

For the year ended june ‘30, 2017, approximately 82 percent of the operating revenue
reflected in the primary government basic financial statements is from HUD.

Note 10 - Upcoming Accounting Pronouncements

In June 2015, the GASB issued Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for
Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions, which addresses reporting by
governments that provide postemployment benefits other than pensions (OPEB) to
their employees and for governments that finance OPEB for employees of other
governments. This OPEB standard will require the Commission to recognize on the face
of the financial statements its net OPEB liability related to its retiree healthcare benefits
offered to retirees. The statement also enhances accountability and transparency
through revised note disclosures and required supplemental information (RSI). The
Commission is currently evaluating the impact this standard will have on the financial
statements when adopted. The provisions of this statement are effective for the
Commission’s financial statements for the year ending June 30, 2018.
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Note 10 - Upcoming Accounting Pronouncements (Continued)

In June 2017, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board issued GASB Statement
No. 87, Leases, which improves accounting and financial reporting for leases by
governments. This statement requires recognition of certain lease assets and liabilities
for leases that previously were classified as operating leases and recognized as inflows
of resources or outflows of resources based on the payment provisions of the contract.
It establishes a single model for lease accounting based on the foundational principle that
leases are financings of the right to use an underlying asset. Under this statement, a
lessee is required to recognize a lease liability and an intangible right-to-use lease asset,
and a lessor is required to recognize a lease receivable and a deferred inflow of
resources. The Commission is currently evaluating the impact this standard will have on
the financial statements when adopted. The provisions of this statement are effective for
the Commission’s financial statements for the 2020-2021 fiscal year.
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Required Supplemental Information
Schedule of Changes in the Commission's Net Pension Liability

year

and Related Ratios
2017 2016 2015
Total Pension Liability
Service cost $ 126,678 $ 114272 $ 114,461
Interest 714,076 698,614 684,653
Changes in assumptions (349,397) 405,966 -
Differences between expected and actual
experience (140,946) (123,435) -
Benefit payments, including refunds (651,805) (635,102) (624,495)
Other (521) - -
Net Change in Total Pension
Liability (301,915) - - 460,315 174,619
Total Pension Liability - Beginning of o
9,188,776 8,728,461 8,553,842

Total Pension Liability - End of year $

8,886,861 $  'é,*l88,776 $ 8,728,461

Plan Fiduciary Net Position :
Contributions - Employer $ 693,689 $ 158,735 $ 215,191
Contributions - Member 67,424 55,586 37,167
Net investment income 743,039 (104,348) 446,261
Administrative expenses (14,686) (15,480) (16,314)
Benefit payments, including refunds (651,805) (635,102) (624,495)
Other 7 (521) - -
Net Change in Plan Fiduciary Net o ,
Position - 837,140 (540,609) 57,810
Plan Fiduciary Net Position -
Beginning of year ' _ 6,686,668 7,227,277 7,169,467
Plan Fiduciary Net Position - End of
year ' $ 7,523,808 $ 6,686,668 $ 7,227,277
Commission's Net Pension Liability - Ending $ 1,363,053 $ 2,502,108 $ 1,501,184
Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a Percentage
of Total Pension Liability 84.66 % 72.77 % 82.80 %
Covered Employee Payroll $ 1,333333 $ 1,235367 $ 1,164,556
Commission's Net Pension Liability as a
Percentage of Covered Employee Payroll 102.2 % 202.5 % 128.9 %
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Schedule of Commission Contributions

Calendar Year
2016 2015 2014
Actuarially determined contribution $ 122,057 $ 103,079 $ 213,163
Contributions In relation to the actuarially determined contribution 693,689 158,735 215,191
Contribution deficiency (excess) $ (571,632) $ (55:656) $ 2,028)
Covered Employee Payroll $ 1,333333 § 1,235,367 $ 1,164,556
Contributions as a Percentage of Covered Employee Payroll R 52.0% 12.8 % 185 %

Notes to Schedule of Commission Contributions
Actuarial valuation information relative to the determination of contributions:

Valuation Date

Actuarially determined contribution rates are calculated ! of December 31, two years prior to the end of the

fiscal year in which the contributions are reported.

Methods and assumptions used to determine contribution rates

Actuarial cost method
Amortization method
Remaining amortization period
Asset valuation method
Inflation

Salary increases

Investment rate of return
Retirement age

Mortality

Other information

Entry age normal cost method
Level percentage of payroll, open
24 years

| 0-yegrf‘s,‘moothed

3.0to 4ﬁd;ﬁercent

4.5 percent; i d longevity increases ranging from 0 to |3 percent

8.0 percent

60

50 percent male to 50 percent female blend of the 1994 Group Annuity Mortality Table

None



Other Supplemental Information
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Financial Data Schedules

Year Ended jJune 30, 2017

4

Pubdlic Housing 14.CFP Capial 14,871 Housing 14,238 Supportive Business Cantral GiMce 6.1 Comnponent Units =
Project Total Fund Cholca Vouchers | Mousing Program | State/Local Activities Cost Center Subtotal Siminations Tota) Discrotaly Prasentad
Balance Sheet
Assers

11,00 Cath - Unrestricted 1,938,322.00 . 375,421.00 . 154,558.00 - 639,244.00 3,157,545.00 - 3,157,545.00 33,872.00
113.00 | Cash - Other restricted - . 1,070,995.00 . - - - 1,070,995.00 - 1,070,995.00 300,878.00
114.00 Cash - Tenant securiy deposts 127,326.00 - - . . . - 127,328.00 . 127,326.00 4,528.00
115.00 | Cash - Rastricted for payrrant of curment kabities 120,544.00 ) . . - . - 120,544.0 - 120,544.00 -
100.00 Tota! Cash 2,186,192.00 - 1,446,416.00 - 154,558.00 . 689,244.00 4,476,410,00 - 4,476,410.00 339,278.00
122.00 Total accounts raceivable « HUD other projects 4,252.00 - - - . . - 4,292.00 . 4,292.00 -
124.00 Accounts caceivable - Other govemment 1,662.00 - - - - . - 1,662.00 - 1,662.00 -
125.00 Tota! accounts receivable - MisceBansous - - - - 91,627.00 90,000.00 46,172.00 227,799.00 - 227,799,00 1,799.00
126,00 Accounts receivable - Tenants - Oweling rents 23,555.00 . - . - . . 23,555.00 - 23,555.00 $37.00
126.10 Allowance for boubtful accounts « Dweling rants. {2,356.00) . . . . - - (2,356.00) - (2,356.00) -
128,00 Accounts and notes recaivable fraud recovery - . - . - - - . - - .
129.00 Accrued intersst recevable 124.00 - - - - 34,431.00 - 34,555.00 - 34,555.00 -
120.00 Total - NatOf For 27,277.00 - - . 91,627.00 124,431.00 46,172.00 289,502.00 . 209,507.00 2,336.00
13100 | lavestmerts - Unrestricted 512,144.00 - - - - . - $12,144.00 . 512,144.00 -
14200 | Prepaid expenses and ciber asets 31,128.00 - 2,742.00 - - - 23,842.00 s2.712.00 - S7.717.00 3,783.00
144,00 Interprogram - Due from - - - - - - 879,491.00 879,491,00 (079.4!).N)| - -
150.00 Tota! Current Assets 2,756,741.00 . 1,445,163.00 . 246,185.00 124,431.00 1,633,749.00 6,21S5,269.00 (879,491.00)/ $,335,778.00 345,397.00
16100 | tand 1,364,771,00 - . - - - 190,000.00 1,554,771.00 - 1,554,771.00 685,162.00
162,00 Suildings 49,023,620.00 . - - - - 718,871.00 49,742,491,00 - 49,742,491.00 3,318,485.00
163.00 Fumiture « Equiprant and rrachinery - Dwattings 948,105.00 . . . - - - 943,105.00 - 943,105.00 -
164.00 | Fumture « Equy and . 13,600.00 . 27,596.00 . B - 364,287.00 405,483,00 - 405,423.00 175,949.00
166.00 Accumubsted depraciation (38,526,405.00) - {27,596.00) - - . (855,420.00)] (39,419,421.00 . {39,419,421.00), (1,572,977.00)
162.00 Construction in prograss 2.311,965.00 - - - A - 19, 100.00 2,331,065.00 - 2,331,065.00 12,510.00
160,00 Total Fixed Assets - Net Of Accumulatad Depreciation 15,135,656.00 - - - - . 426,833.00 15,562,494.00 - 15,562,494,00 2,619,129.00
171.00 Total notes - Loans - And rortgages racevable - Noncurrant - - - . - 705,880.00 218, 350,00 924,230.00 - 924,230.00 -
17400 | Total other assets - - - - - 100.00 - 100.00 . 100.00 7,638.00
180.00 Total Noncurrant Assets 15,135,656.00 - - - - 705,980.00 645,183.00 16,436,824.00 - 16,485,824.00 2,626,767.00
190.00 Total Assots 12,092,397,00 - 1,449,163.00 - 246,165.00 830,411.00 2,283,937.00 22,702,093.00 (879,491.00) 21,822,602.00 2,972,164.00
200,00 Deferred cutflow of rsources 705,540.00 - 185,626.00 - - . 126,073.00 1,017,239.00 L] 1,017,239.00 -
190,00 Total Assets and Deferrad Outfiow of Resources 18,597,937.00 - 1,634,789.00 - 240,185.00 030,411,600 2,416,010.00 23,719,332.00 879,491.00) 22,839,841.00 2,972,164,00
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Year Ended June 30, 2017

43

Public Housing 14.CFP Capltal 14,871 Housing 14.238 Supportiva Business Cantra) Office 6.1 Camponent Units -
Projact Tots) Fond Chokca Vouchars | Housing Program |  State/Lecal Activities Cost Cantor Subtotal Etiminations Total Olscrataly Prasantad

Uabiities
312.00 Accounts paysble <= 90 Days 70,000.00 - 8,176.00 - - - 4,282.00 82,458.00 - 82,458.00 1,381.00
321.00 Accraed wage/payroll taxes payable 30,125.00 - 13,510,00 - - - 12,756.00 $6,391.00 - 56,391.00 61,009.00
322.00 Accrusd compensated absances - Curent portion 9,281.00 - 3,943.00 - - - 4,299.00 12,528.00 . 17,528.00 -
325,00 Accruad Interast Payabla - - - - - - - . . - 139,595.00
31.00 Tota! accounts payable - HUD Pha prograns . - - . - . . - - - -
333.00 Accounts payable - Other gavemmunt 64,909.00 - - - - - . 64,909.00 - 64,909.00 17,915.00
341.00 Tenant security deposis 127,326.00 - - - - - - 127,326.00 - 127,326.00 4,528.00
34200 | Tota) defemmed ravarue 32,725.00 - - . - - ] 32,725.00 - 32,725.00 -
343.00 Total curert portion of LTD-captal projects/mortgage frevenuve bonds 120,544.00 - - - - . 49,141.00 169,685.00 . 169,625.00 (3,273.00)
346.00 | Accrued babaties - Other 78,622.00 . 17.00 . . . 975.00 79,614.00 - 79,614.00 148,360.00
347.00 Interprogram - Que to - - - - - 879,491.00 . 879,451.00 (579,491.00), . -
343.00 Loan Liabiity-Current - : - - : - : - 177,762.00
310.00 Total Current Liadlitties $33,532.00 - 25,651.00 - - 879,491.00 21,483,00 1,510,127.00 (879,491.00) 630,636.00 652,204.00
351.00 Tola) LTO-net of current-capkal projects/mortgage ravenus bonds 1,698,162.00 . . . - - 425,762.00 2,123,924.00 . 2,123,924.00 2,558,056.00
353.00 Noncurrent Sabikies - Other - . 29,193.00 - . . - 29,193.00 . 29,193.00 405,767.00
354.00 Accrued corpensated absencas - Non-cumant 52,594.00 . 22,370.00 . . . 24,361,00 $9,325.00 . ©9,325,00 .
352,00 Accrued pension and OPEB babities 2,137,003.00 - £03,997.00 - - - 282,9732.00 3,228.973.00 d 3.228,973.00 -
350.00 Tata! Noncurrent Liabilitics 3,837,759.00 - 860, 550.00 - - - 733,096.00 5,431.415.00 - $.431,415.00 2,963,023.00
300.00 Tots) Uabilities 4,421,291.00 . 836,211.00 - - 879,491.00 804,549.00 6,991,542.00 (679,491,00), 6,112,051.00 3,616,027.00
400.00 Deferrad inflow of resources 93.710.00 - 24,655.00 - - - 16,745.00 135,110.00 - 135,110.00 -

Egquity
508.10 Invasted in capital assets + Nat of related debt 13,316,950.00 - - - . - (42,065.00) 13,268,885.00 - 13,268,835.00 31,255.00
S11.40 Rastrictad net assets - - 1,041,802.00 - - - . 1,041,802,00 - 1,041,802.00 .
512.10 Unrestricted net assets 765,986.00 - (317,829.00)] - 246,105.00 m.mw)i 1,636,701.00 2.281,953.00 - 2,201,993.00 (675.118.00)
$13.00 Total Equity/Net Assets 14,032,935.00 - 723,923.00 - 246,185.00 {49,080.00){ 1,568,718.00 16,592,680,00 - 16,§92,680.00 (643,883.00)
$00.00 Total Liabilities and Equity /Nat Assats 13,597,937.00 - 1,634,789.00 - 246,185.00 £830,411.00 2,410,016.00 23,219,332.00 (879,491.00)| 22.839,841.00 2,972,164.00
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Financial Data Schedules (Continued)
Year Ended June 30, 2017

Pudlic Houtling 14.CFP Copital 14,871 Housing 14,238 Supportive Business Central Oftico 6.1 Componant Units -
Project Total Fund Choka Vouchers | Mousing Program | State/tocal Activiies Cost Canter Subtotal Etiminations Toual Discrutaly Prasantad
Income Statement
Ravenue

70300 Het tenant renta! revenve 1.556,075.00 - - - - N - 1,556,075.00 . 1,556,075.00 85,152.00
70400 Tenant revenve - Other ©9,594.00 - - - - - - 99.594.00 - 99,594.00 -
70500 Total Tenant Revenue 1,635,669.00 . . - . . - 1,655,669.00 - 1,655,669.00 85,152.00
70600 Total HUD Phs operating grants 3,712,245.00 603,937.00 10,354,155.00 - . . . 14,670,331.00 . 14,670,381.00 174911.00
70610 Capital grants - 892,237.00 . . - - - 892,237.00 . 892,237.00 .
70710 Managarrart fes . . - . . . 786,023.00 786,023.00 (786,023.00}| - -
70720 Asset monagermant fes - - . - - - 99,560.00 99,560.00 {99,960.00) - -
70730 Bookkesping fas - . - - . . 72,015.00 72,015.00 (72,015.00) . -
0750 Other fees i - h - = : i - - - -
70700 Total Fes Ravenue 3,712,245.00 1,496,174.00 10,354,195.00 B . . 957,998.00 957,998,00 (957,998,00)| B .
70800 Other governvent grants - . . - 1,362,750.00 . - 1,362,750.00 - 1,362,750.00 -
73100 Tolsl investrmant incoma » Unrestncted 2,446.00 - 160.00 - - 3,321.00 - 5,927.00 - 5,927.00 20,968.00
71400 Tota! revanue fraud recovery - - 9,900.00 - - - - 9,900.00 . 9,900.00 .
71500 Other revenus 62,183.00 - 12,806.00 . . 90,000.00 75,780.00 240,769.00 . 240,769.00 .
71600 Gain or b33 on sale of fxed a3sels {39,225.00) - - - - - - ps.zzs.oo!i . (39125.W)| -
70000 Total Revenus S,393,318.00 1,496,174.00 10,377,065.00 - 1,362,753.00 9$3,321.00 1,033,778.00 19,756,408.00 (957,993.00)| 18,798,408.00 281,031.00
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Public Housing 14.CFP Capital 14.871 Mousing 14.233 Supportive Business Cantral OfMics. 6.1 Component Units -
Project Total Fund Cholca Vouchers | Housing Program | Stata/Local Activities Cost Canter Sutsotal Eliminatians Total Olscrataly Prosentad
Expenscs

91100 Administrative salaries 318,689.00 - 276,393.00 - 56,377.00 - 325,263.00 976,722.00 - 976,722.00 5,934.00
91200 Audging faes 15,360.00 - 272,225.00 - . - 5,545.00 48,630.00 - 48,630,00 13,050.00
91300 Managerant fes 609,395.00 137.265.00 176,628.00 - - - . 923,268.00 {786,023.00) 137,265.00 30,654.00
91310 Bookkeeping fas 72,015.00 - - . - . . 72,015.00 {72,015.00), . -
91400 Advestisting and markating - - - - - - $09.00 509.00 . 509.00 .
91500 Enplyss baneft contrditions - Adminatrative 369,390.00 - 242,506.00 - 12,841.00 - 130,137.00 754,874.00 - 754,874.00 -
91600 Office expanzes 186,968.00 - 148,380.00 - - - 33,376.00 388,724.00 . 368,724.00 5,311.00
91700 Lega! expense 104,784.00 . . . - - 3,639.00 108,423.00 - 108,423.00 -
91800 Travel 2,272.00 - 920.00 . . - 1,502.00 4,694.00 . 4,694.00 .
91900 Other - - 145,028.00 - 103,845.00 - 49,458.00 299,331.00 - 299,331.00 112.00
91000 Tota) Administrative 1,678,8732.00 137,285.00 1,018,530.00 - 173,063.00 - 549,429,060 3,8%7,210.00 (858,033.00) 2,699,172.00 S5,061.00
92000 Asset managemant fee 59,960.00 - - - - . - 99.950.00 (99.560.00)| . -
92400 Tenant services « Other 41,134.00 - - - - - 61.00 41,195.00 - 41,195.00 -
92300 Total Tenant Services 141,094.00 - - - - - 61.00 41,195.00 - 41,195.00 -
93100 Water 175,131.00 . 114.00 - . . 892.00 176,137.00 - 176,137.00 11,210.00
93200 Elactricity 224,569.00 . 893.00 - . - 8,230.00 233,692.00 - 233,632.00 35,938.00
93300 Gas 202,357.00 - 73.00 - . - 1,691.00 204,161.00 - 204,161.00 10,318.00
93500 Sawer 252,588.00 . 95.00 - - $42.00 253,225.00 - 253,225.00 10,841.00
93800 Other tiities expanse - - - hd d d - L - - -
93000 Total Utilities. 854,688.00 - 1,175.00 - . - 11,355.00 867,215.00 - 867,215.00 67,907.00
94100 Ordnary raintenance and operations - Labor 471,587.00 - . . - - - 471,587.00 - 471,587.00 2,902.00
94200 Ordinary maintenance and operations - Matenats and other 364,336.00 - . - . - - 364,336.00 - 364,336.00 577.00
94300 Tota! ordinary maintanance and operations - Contract costs 1,541,373.00 - 33,981.00 - - . 66,154.00 1,641,508.00 . 1,641,508.00 16,773.00
94500 Erployes benaftt contributions « Ordinery maintanance 233,446.00 - - - o - - 233,446.00 . 233,446.00 -
94000 Tota! Malntenance 2,610,742.00 - 33,981.00 - - - 66,154.00 2,710,877.00 - 2,710,877.00 20,252.00
95200 Protective services - Other contract costs 11,175.00 . 261.00 - - - 1,662.00 13,098.00 - 13,098.00 635.00
96110 Property insurance 124,309.00 . - - 1,487.00 125,796.00 125,796.00 11,482.00
96120 Lablzy insurance 51,696.00 - 16,279.00 - . - 226.00 68,201.00 - 68,201.00 1,275.00
96130 Workimens compensation 16,834.00 - 5,734.00 - - 1,059.00 23,627.00 . 23,627.00 -
96140 All other insurance 14,716.00 - 554.00 - - - 19.127.00 34.397.00 - 34,397.00 1,591.00
98100 Yota! tnsurance Premivms 207,955.00 - 22,567.00 - - - 21,899.00 252,021.00 - 252,021.00 14,348.00
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Year Ended June 30, 2017

Public Housing | 14.CFPCaptta) | 34.071 Housing | 14.233 Supportive Business Cantral OfMce 6.1 Component Units -
Project Vota) Pund Cholea Vouchers | Housing Program |  State/lecal Activities CostCentar Subtotal Eiiminations Total Discratoly Prosentad
96210 Corrpensated absances 38,715.00 - 19,310.00 - - - 17,696.00 75,721.00 - 75,721.00 -
96300 Payrrants in Seu of taxes 63,156.00 - . . . - . 63,156.00 - 63,156.00 18,338.00
96400 Bad dabt - Tenart rants 69,832.00 - - - - - 51,000.00 120,832.00 - 120,832.00 -
960CC Total Other Genera! Expanses 171,703.00 - 19,310.00 - . - 62,696.00 259,709.00 . 259,709.00 18,338.00
96710 Interast Of Mortgage {or Bonds) Payabla . . - - - . . . - - 93,331.00
96720 rterest on notes payadle (hort and long-termy 76,858.00 - - - - - 12,024.00 88,882.00 - 88,882.00 -
96730 Arartization of bond issus costs - - - - - - - - i - 1527.00
90700 Tota Interest Expense And Amortizatian Cost 76,858.00 - - - - - 12,024.00 88,882.00 - 8,822.00 94,853.00
96900 Total Operating Expenses %,752,635.00 137,265.00 1,095,874,00 - 123,063.00 - 731,280.00 7,890,167.00 (957,993.00). 6,932,169.00 271,399.00
97000 Excess revenus over 0Derating expenses {359,357.00}, 1,358,909.00 9,281,191.00 - 1,189,687.00 93,321.00 302,498.00 11,866,239.00 - 11,866,239.00 9,632.00
97300 Total housing assisiance payrmants - - 9,276,898.00 - 1,126,243.00 - - 10,403,146.00 - 10,403,146.00 -
97400 Depreciation expsnse 1,155,512.00 - 705.00 - . - 117,129.00 1,273,346.00 - 1,273,345.00 140.260.00
93000 Total Other Nonoperating Expenaea 1,155,512.00 - - 1,126,243.00 - 117,129.00 11,676,492.00 - 11,676,492.00 140,260.00
95000 Taotal Expanses 6,908,197.00 137,285.00 10,373,477.00 - 1,299,311.00 - B42,409.00 19,566,659.00 (952,992.00) 18,608,661.00 411,659.00
10040 Oparating transfers in 466,672.00 - . . . - . 466,672.00 466,672.00 .
10020 Opanting transfern ok - (466,672.00), - - - - - 1466,672.00)| 1466,672.00)| -
10100 Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 466,072.00 (460,072.00), - - - . . - - - -
10000 Excess (Daficlancy) Of Tuta! Ravenus Over (Under) Tota!
Expenzes £1,049,207.00)} £92,237.00 3,583.00 - £3,439.00 93,321.00 18%,389.00 189,747.00 - 189,742.00 (130,623.00)|
11020 Raguired Annual debt Principal Paymants 110,231.00 - - - . - 47,976.00 158,207.00 - 158,207.00 28,367.00
11030 Baginaing Equty 14,238,906.00 - 724,182.00 {143.00), 175,042.00 (142,401.00) 1,403,347.00 16,402,933.00 . 16,302,933.00 {433,235.00)
11040 Prior Periad Eguty Transfers- And of Enors - - (3,847.00), 143.00 3,704.00 - . - - . {80,000.00)|
11170 Adrrinistrativa Fee Equity - - - - - - - . - - -
11180 Housing Assistance Paymants Equiy . . - - . - - - . - -
11190 Unit Months Avaitable 9,996.00 - 21,936.00 - 1,050.00 - . 32,982.00 - 32,982.00 30.00
11210 Nurber of Unk Manths Leased 9,602.00 - 16,424.00 - 1,050.00 - . 27.076.00 - 22,076.00 30.00
11620 Bulding Purchases - 892,237.00 - - . - - 892,237.00 - 892,237.00 -
13901 Raplacemant Housing Factor Funds - - - - - - - - - - .

46



RECEIVED JUN 15 gy

Actual Modernization U.S, Department of Housing OMB Approval No, 2577-0157 (exp. 01/31/2017)
c ope and Urban Development

ost Certmcate Office of Public and Indian Housing
Capital Fund Program (CFP) DU

Public reporting burden far this collection of tnfarmation Is est!mated fo average 2 hours per response, including the time for reviewing Instructions, searching
existing data sources, gathering and malataining the data needed. and complefing and.reviewing the collection of information. Send comments regarding this
burden estimate or any other aspact of this collection of Information, Including suggestions for rettucl g Uis burden, lo the Reports Management Officer,
Peperwork Reduction Project (2577-0044 and 0167), Cifice of Information Technolopy, U.S. Depariment of Houslng and Urban Deve! pment, Washington,
D.C.20410-3800. This agency may not conduct or spansor, and a person is not required to respond to, a coilection of Information unless that coltestion displays a

valid OMB control number.

Do not send this form to the above address.
This collection of information requires that each Housing Authority (HA) submil information {o enable HUD o Inltinfe the fiscal closeout process, The information
will be used by HUD to determine whelher the modernization grantis reedy to be audited and closed oul. The informalion Is essential for audit verification and

fiscal close oul. Responses to the collection are required by regulalion. The Information requested does not lend itself o confidentiality.
Modermlzation Project Number:

PHA Name:
Lansing Housing Commission MI33P058501-14

The PHA hereby certifies to the Department of Housing and Urban Development as follows:

1. _That the total amount of Modemization Cost {herein called the "Actual Modernizalion Cost") of the Modernization Granl, is as shown below:

A. Funds Approved $ $1,202,413.00
B. Funds Disbursed $ $1,292,413.00
C. Funds Expended (Actual Mo&;;;;a(ionn Cost) $ $1,292,413.00
D. Amount to be Recaptured (A~C) $0
E.  Excess of Funds Disbursed (B-C) . | $0

2. That all modernization work In connection with the Modernization Grant has been completed;
3. That the entire Actual Modemization Cost or liabilities therefor incurred by the PHA have been fully paid;

4. That there are no undischarged mechanics', laborers’, contraclors', or material-men's liens against such modernization
work on file in any public office where the same should be filed in order to be valid against such modernization work;

5. That the time in which such liens could be filed has expired: and

6. That for any years in which the grantee is subject to the audit requirements of the Single Audit Act, 31 U.S.C. § 7501 et seq., as
amended, the grantee has or will perform an audit in compliance with said requirements.

7. Please mark one:
[ A. This grant will be included in the PHA's nex fiscal year audit per the requirements of the Single Audit Act.
J  B.This grant will not be included in the PHA's next fiscal year audit per the requirements of the Single Audit Act.

herawith, Is true and accurate.

1 hereby cerTlTy that all tha Information staled herein, as well as any Inf pi in the P
Waralng: HUD viill prosecute fatse clalms and statements. Conviction may resuit in criminal and/or civil penaities. (18 U.S.C. 1001, 1010, 1012: 31 U.S.C. 3729, 3802)

Name & Title of Authorized Signatory (type or print clearly):
Patricia Baines-Lake, Executive Director

Signature of Executive Director (or Aughorized Designee): o
X { o }4}(, Zj —
— R
ForHUDUseOnly ™~ - :
Date:

/1o
&/

form HUD-53001 (10/06)
ref Handbooks 7485.1 8.3




Actual Modernization u.s. Degartment ?f Housing OMB ApprovaRiE %E?W&Bx&ﬁ?lslzsﬂ)m'}
see and Urban Development
COSt Ce rtificate Office. of Public and Indian Housing

Capiltal Fund Program (CFP)

Public reporting burden for this collection of information is estimated to average 2 hours per response, including (he time for reviewing instrucbons, searching
existing data sources, gathering and malntaining the data needed, and completing and reviewing the collection of information. Send comments regarding this
burden estimate or any other aspect of this collection of inf tion, including suggestions for reducing this burden, o the Reports Management Officer,
Papenvork Reduclion Project (2577-0044 and 0157), Office of Information Technology, U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development, Washington,
D.C.20410-3600. This agency may not conduct or sponsor, and a person Is not required to pond to, a collection of infarmation unless that collection displays a

valid OMB control number.
Do not send this form to the above address.

This collection of information requires that each Housing Authority (HA) submil information to enable HUD to initiate the fiscal closeout process, The information
will be used by HUD to determine whether the modernization grant is ready to be audilsd and closed cut. The information is essential for audit verffication and

fiscal close out. Respanses to the collection are required by regulation. The information requested does not lend itself to confidentiality.
PHA Name: Modernization Project Number:

Lansing Housing Commission MI33P058501-15
The PHA hereby cerfifies to the Department of Housing and Urban Develspment as follows:

1._Thal the total amount of Modernization Cost (herein called the "Actual Modernization Cost") of the Modernization Grant, is as shown below:
A.  Funds Approved $ 1,324,342.00
B. Funds Disbursed $ 1,324,342.00
C. Funds Expended (Actual Modernization Cost) $ 1,324,342.00
D.  Amount to be Recaptured (A-C) $
E.  Excess of Funds Disbursed (B-C) $ —

2. That all modernization work in connection with the Modernization Grant has been completed;
3. That the entire Actual Modernization Cost or liabilities therefor incurred by the PHA have been fully paid;

4. That there are no undischarged mechanics', laborers’, contraclors’, or malerial-men’s liens against such modernization
work on file in any public office where the same should be filed in order to be valid against such modernization work;

5. That the time in which such liens could be filed has expired; and

6. That for any years in which the grantee is subject to the audit requirements of the Single Audit Act, 31 U.S.C. § 7501 et seq., as
amended, the grantee has or will perform an audit in compliance with said requirements.

7. Please maik one:
i” A, This grant will be included in the PHA's next fiscal year audit per the requirements of the Single Audit Act.
) B. This grant will not be included in the PHA's next fiscal year audit per the requirements of the Single Audit Act.

I hereby cerﬁy that alf the information statod hercin, as well as any Information providad in (he accompaniment horewilh, is irue and accurato.
Warning: HUD will prosecute false caims and statements. Conviction may rosult In crimingl andlor civil penallies. (18 U.S.C. 1001, 1010, 1012; 31 U.S.C. 3729, 3802)

Name & Title of Authorized Signatory (type or print cloarly):
Patricia Baines-Lake, Executive Director

Slignature of Executlve,Dlrocth(or Authorized Deslgnee): Date:1 22017
o o ”y ) b e st W4 - !
X ¢ Vs KB\ e e
— ¥

For HUD Use Chnly ~ -~~~

The Cost Certificate Is approyed for audit (if box 7A is dlarked):

fioved fonAudit (Direc .O?cmy?ubl /,m singy pute: /
X‘(/ L—387 (. C, </ /7

The costs shown ov?gy(/with HUD véfifigd co! (if hox 7A or 7B Is marked):
of

?pm e .

/ form HUD-53001 (10/96)
- ref Handbooks 7485.1 8.3
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Report on Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
Required by the Uniform Guidance

Independent Auditor's Report

To the Board of Commissioners
Lansing Housing Commission

We have audited the basic financial statements of the business-type activities and the discretely
presented component unit of Lansing Housing Commission (the "Commission”) as of and for the
year ended June 30, 2017, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively
comprise the Commission's basic financial statements. We issued our report thereon dated
December 29, 2017 which contained an unmodified opinion on the financial statements. Our
audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statement that
collectively comprise the basic fifancial statements. We have not performed any procedures

with respect to the audited finanei: tements subsequent to February 28, 2018.

and other additional procedures® rin accordance:
United States of America. In our opinion, the i

February 28, 2018



Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on Compliance
and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements
Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards

Independent Auditor's Report

To Management and the Board of Commissioners
Lansing Housing Commission

We have audited, in accordance ‘with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the. standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards issued :by the ‘mptroller General of the United States, the financial
statements of the buisif s-type actit ,t|es and the discretely presented component unit of

related notes to th financial stateme
financial statements, and have |ssued o';

;, which collectively comprise the Commlsswns basic
‘report thereon dated December 29, 2017.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the f’ nancaal statements, we considered Lansing Housing
Commission's internal control over financial reportmg (internal control) to determine the audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions
on the financial statements, but not for-the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Commission's intern: control Accordlngly,- we do not express an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Commission's internal contro

A deficiency in internal control exists when the"design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on mely basis. A material weakness is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable
possibility that a material misstatement of the Commission's financial statements will not be
prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency,
or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness,
yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that
might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or
significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified. Given these limitations, during our
audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material
weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. We did
identify a certain deficiency in internal control, described in the accompanying schedule of
findings and questioned costs that we consider to be a significant deficiency. See Finding 2017-
00l.



Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Lansing Housing Commission's financial
statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with
which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement
amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an
objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our
tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported
under Government Auditing Standards.

Lansing Housing Commission's Response to Findings

The Lansing Housing Commission's response to the findings identified in our audit are described
in the accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs. Lansing Housing Commission's
response was not subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial
statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Commission's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Commission's
internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other
purpose.

February 28, 2018



Report on Compliance For Each Major Federal Program;
Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Independent Auditor's Report

To the Board of Commissioners
Lansing Housing Commission

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited Lansing Housing Commission's (the "Commission”) compliance with the types
of compliance requirements described in the U.S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB)
Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal
programs for the year ended June 30, 2017. Lansing Housing Commission's major federal
programs are identified in the summary of auditor's results section of the accompanying schedule
of findings and questioned costs.

Management's Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and
conditions of its federal awards applicable to its federal programs.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of Lansing Housing
Commission's major federal programs based on our audit of the types of compliance
requirements referred to above.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted
in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the
audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (the "Uniform
Guidance"). Those standards and the Uniform Guidance require that we plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a
major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about
Lansing Housing Commission's compliance with those requirements and performing such other
procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each
major federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of Lansing
Housing Commission's compliance.

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program



In our opinion, Lansing Housing Commission complied, in all material respects, with the types of
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each
of its major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2017.

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of Lansing Housing Commission is responsible for establishing and maintaining
effective internal control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred
to above. In planning and performing our audit of compliance, we considered Lansing Housing
Commission's internal control over compliance with the types of requirements that could have a
direct and material effect on each major federal program to determine the auditing procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on internal control over
compliance in accordance with Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Commission's internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control
over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing
their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal
control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over
compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected,
on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control
over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in
the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal
control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies, and
therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified. We
did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be
material weaknesses. However, we identified certain deficiencies in internal control over
compliance, as described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as
Finding 2017-002, that we consider to be a significant deficiency.

The Lansing Housing Commission's responses to the internal control over compliance findings
identified in our audit are described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned
costs and/or corrective action plan. Lansing Housing Commission's response was not subjected
to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of compliance and, accordingly, we express no
opinion on the responses.



The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of
our testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the
requirements of the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other
purpose.

Auburn Hills, Ml

February 28, 2018
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Lansing Housing Commission
L]
Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

Year Ended June 30, 2017

Note | - Basis of Presentation

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards (the “Schedule”) includes
the federal grant activity of Lansing Housing Commission under programs of the federal
government for the year ended June 30, 2017. The information in this Schedule is
presented in accordance with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal
Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit
Requirements for Federal Awards (the “Uniform Guidance”). Because the Schedule
presents only a selected portion of the operations of Lansing Housing Commission, it is
not intended to and doesinot present the financial position, changes in net position, or
cash flows of Lansing | Ho ig Commission.

Note 2 - Summary of Signifiéant Accounting Policies

Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of accounting.
Such expenditures are recognized following the cost principles contained in Title 2 U.S.
Code of Federal Regulatlons, Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost
Principles, and Aud" T reinents for Federal Awards, wherein certain types of
expenditures are not allowal are limited as to reimbursement. Pass-through entity
identifying numbers are pres where available.

Lansing Housing Commission has not elected to use the 10 percent de minimus indirect
cost rate to recover indirect costs as allowed under the Uniform Guidance.




Lansing Housing Commission

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
Year Ended June 30, 2017

Section | - Summary of Auditor's Resulits
Financial Statements

Type of auditor’s report issued: Unmodified

Internal control over financial reporting:

e Material weakness(es) identified? Yes X No

o Significant deficiency(ies) identified that are
not considered to be material weaknesses? X Yes None reported

Noncompliance material to financial. -

statements noted7 e Yes X No
Federal Awards :
Internal control over ma;or programs: -
e Material weakness(es) identifi ed7r"v | - Yes X No
o Significant deficiency(ies) identified’ that are
not considered to be material weaknesses? X Yes None reported

Type of auditor's report issued on compllance for ma;or programs: Unmodified

Any audit findings disclosed that are requnred“ 5
to be reported in accordance with

Section 2 CFR 200.516 (a)? No
Identification of major programs:
CFDA Numbers Name of Federal Program or Cluster
14.850 Low-rent Public Housing and Development

14.871 Section 8 Housing Choice Vouchers
Dollar threshold used to distinguish between type A and type B programs: $750,000

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? Yes X No




Lansing Housing Commission
L. ]
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs

Year Ended June 30, 2017

Section Il - Financial Statement Audit Findings

Reference

Number Finding

2017-001 Finding Type - Significant Deficiency

Criteria - An effective review of the Other Post-Employment
Benefits (OPEB) calculation should be completed in advance of the
year-end audit mcludmg the identification and documentation of any
changes in assumptions or estimates from the prior year.

Condition - The OPEB expense and liability was recorded based on
the calculatlon prepared by the fee accountant and reviewed by
management.  The |n|t|al calculation excluded eight retired
employees -resulting .in. .an immaterial understatement of OPEB
liability and expense as of and for the year ended June 30, 2017.

Context - The audItOI"I/ ,f‘that the OPEB calculation failed to
include retired employees who would be eligible to receive benefits.
The retired employees have beel iincluded in the calculation in
previous years. There were no. pollcy changes effectlve during the
har ‘ or estimates

Cause - The OPEB calculatuon is an :estimate based on the
assumptions determined by management and es approved by
the Board of Commissioners. The fee accountant. excluded the
retired employees from the calculation and management did not
identify this change in the calculation in advance of recording the
year-end accrual. :

Effect - The OPEB liability and expense are understated as of and
for the year ended June 30, 2017 by $27,598.

Recommendation - An effective review of the OPEB calculation
should be completed in advance of year-end audit including the
identification and documentation of any changes in assumptions or
estimates from the prior year.

Views of Responsible Officials and Planned Corrective
Actions - The Commission shall implement a management review
of the OPEB calculation during the prepration for the year end
audit process.



Lansing Housing Commission

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs (Continued)
Year Ended june 30, 2017

Section Ill - Federal Program Audit Findings

Reference

Number

Finding

2017-002 CFDA number, Federal Agency, and Program Name - U.S. Department of

Housing and Urban Development - Direct programs - Low-rent Public Housing
and Development - 14.850

Federal Award ldentification Number and Year - Not applicable

Pass-through Entitvy_"t Not applicable

960.257, énd 960 259 the Commnsswn must

a. Asa condltlon of admlsswn or contlnued occupancy, requnre the pamcupant and
other family mem
releases for the Co_,

b. For both family i income examlnatlons and re-examinations, obtain and document
in the family file third-party:verification of: (1) reported family annual income,
(2) the value of assets, (3)' expenses related to deductions from annual income,
and (4) other factors that affect the determination of adjusted income or
income-based rent.

c. Determine income eligibility and caleulate the partncnpant s rent payment using
documentation from third-party verifi cation.

d. Select participant from the public housmg wamng list (see Special Tests and
Provisions - Public Housing Waiting List).

e. Re-examine family income and composition at least once every 12 months and
adjust the tenant rent and housing assistance payment as necessary using the
documentation from third-party verification

Condition - Some participant files tested did not include complete information to
support participant eligibility and/or the level of benefits provided.

Questioned Costs - None

Identification of How Questioned Costs Were Computed - Not applicable



Lansing Housing Commission
L . ]
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs (Continued)

Year Ended June 30, 2017

Section Il - Federal Program Audit Findings (Continued)

Reference
Number Finding

2017-002
(Con't) Context - 60 participant files were tested and the results are as follows:

e One participant file included income at the incorrect amount on HUD-50058
due to improper determination of income based on third-party detail.

¢ Four participant files did not have a completed annual recertification performed
during the fi SCal year.

e Two. part|cupant files mcluded the utility allowance at the incorrect amount on
HUD-50058 ~

Four particnpant files failed to include sufficent evidence to support appropriate
selection from the public housing waiting list

Cause and Effect - Controls. in ﬁiate have not resulted in the Commission
consistently following policies and procedures to ensure proper compliance with
regard to participant ellglblllty requurements The Commission could be charging
the incorrect amount of tenant.rent or could be housing ineligible tenants and/or
selecting them inappropriately from the mamtalned wait list.

Recommendation - The Commlssmn should: follow established procedures to
ensure participant selection from the wait list is properly supported; eligibility is
documented and complete tenant files are maintained. Periodic internal review of
tenant files would help identify errors in a timely manner.

In addition, tenant rent payment calculations should be prepared and reviewed by
individuals with the appropriate skills and knowledge necessary to ensure complete
and accurate forms resulting in correct tenant rent payments.

Views of Responsible Officials and Planned Corrective Actions - The
Commission shall strengthen asset management file oversight, increase the number
of file reviews conducted, and establish and maintain a file quality control process
to improve regulatory compliance.

12



Lansing Housing Commission
Summary Results for JANUARY FY2018

Description MT Vernon Hildebrandt LaRoy Froh So Washington LIPH Total cocc HCV

REVENUE:

Total Revenue Variance - Fav (Unfav) 2,393 5,739 (1,215) (7,687) (770) (2,466) 83,139

Tenant Revenue Variance (1,914) (1,051) (4,845) 1,096 (6,714)

HUD Revenue Variance 3,321 5,926 922 (9,996) 173 78,816

Capital Fund Income 875 875 875 875 3,500

Other Income 111 (11) 1,833 338 2,271 (2,466) 4,323

Other - - - - - - -

Budgeted Revenue 100,104 126,990 120,818 84,400 432,312 64,244 818,573
% Variance fav (unfav) 2% 5% -1% -9% 0% -4% 10.2%

EXPENSES:

Total Expense Variance Unfav (Fav) 33,107 49,758 36,216 20,487 139,568 1,340 86,862

Contributing Factors:

MERS Contribution Special =

Adjusted Expense Variance 33,107 49,758 36,216 20,487 139,568 1,340 86,862

-Over spend (Under spend)

Employee Benefit Expenses (1,050) (763) (2,028) (3,841) (4,671)

Salary Expenses (3,404) (7,206) (4,917) (3,253) (18,780) (6,214) 3,856

Utilities (8,467) (6,253) (2,255) 12,236 (4,739)

Recycling 5,547 (2,371) 11,102 1,085 15,363

Legal 2,908 1,501 2,801 7,210

Professional Services 2,038 1,414 3,452 -

Auditing Fees 2,500 2,500 2,500 2,500 10,000 2,500 12,500

Insurance - 1,832

Travel/Training Costs - 3,827

HAP Expense - - 62,981

Software - 6,189

Maintenance - Snow Removal 10,415 13,006 8,516 3,594 35,531 -

Maintenance Costs 11,935 9,642 3,751 - 25,328 -

Maintenance Contract - Unit Turns 9,163 36,652 15,491 - 61,306

Other 1,522 3,137 2,555 1,524 8,738 4,066 1,336

Curr Mo. Actual Net Income (Loss) S (25629) S (32,226) S  (28,709) S (33,420) $ (119,984) S 11,960 S (33,763)

YTD Actual Net Income (Loss) Net of CWIP ¢ 41,136 $ 81,206 $ 35,604 $ (115,022) $ 42,924 $ 106,800 $ (527,864)

Prior YR YTD Net Income (Loss) $ 113590 S 261,835 $ 121220 $ (68,028) S 428617 S 199,485 S 1,055,132




Lansing Housing Commission

Budget vs. Actual

cocce

For the Period Ending January 31, 2018

YTD Amount YTD Budget YTD Variance Prior YTD Actual Annual Budget R;'::;’:: 9
Management Fees Income $ 376,286 $ 490,819 $ (114,533) $ 516,730 § 755690 % 264,871
Bookkeeping Fees Income 42,128 41,951 177 41,822 71,916 29,965
Fraud Recovery and Other 42,521 43,939 (1,418) 43,830 75,330 31,391
Total Operating Revenue $ 460,935 $ 576,709 $ (115,774) $ 602,382 $ 902936 $ 326,227
Administrative Salaries $ 185,486 $ 232,407 $ (46,921) $ 161,071 $ 402,839 $ 170,432
Auditing Fees 5,000 5,200 (200) 3,750 5,200 -
Employee Benefits Contributions - Admin 45,732 67,913 (22,181) 139,214 116,762 48,848
Office Expenses 32,164 26,201 5,963 14,820 40,546 14,345
Legal 345 1,000 (656) 1,667 2,000 1,000
Travel 3,368 980 2,388 27 1,680 700
Other 17,234 14,252 2,982 23,031 28,104 13,852
Tenant Services - Other - - - - - -
Water 1,195 875 320 329 1,500 625
Electricity 5,222 7,387 (2,165) 3,941 11,514 4,127
Gas 632 641 (9) 579 1,909 1,268
Other Utilities Expense 215 240 (25) 144 300 60
Ordinary Maintenance and Operations - Materia 319 175 144 34 300 125
Ordinary Maintenance and Operations - Contrac 5,741 4,596 1,145 5,800 7,736 3,140
Protective Services - Other Contract Costs 438 350 88 1,637 600 250
Property Insurance 1,415 764 650 957 1,310 546
Liability Insurance - 791 (791) 226 1,356 565
Workers Compensation 814 1,008 (194) 770 1,728 720
All Other Insurance 16,853 - 16,853 2,182 - -
Other General Expenses 25,485 22,264 3,221 35,860 38,534 16,270
Compensated Absences - - - - - -
Interest Expense 6,478 6,478 0) 6,960 10,860 4,382
Total Operating Expenses $ 354,135 $ 393523 ¢ (39,388) $ 402,897 $ 674,778 3 281,255
Net Income (Loss) $ 106,800 $ 183,186 % (76,387) $ 199485 $ 228,159 $ 44 972




Lansing Housing Commission

Budget vs. Actual

Housing Choice Voucher

For the Period Ending January 31, 2018

YTD Amount YTD Budget YTD Variance Prior YTD Actual Annual Budget R;'::;:: 9
HUD PHA Operating Grants $ 5631021 $ 5727211 (96,190) $ 6,067,368 § 9818076 $ 4,080,865
Other Revenue 225 - 225 336 - -
Fraud Recovery and Other 12,141 2,800 9,341 2131 4,800 2,000
Total Operating Revenue $ 65643388 $ 5730011 $ (86,623) $ 6059835 § 9822876 §$ 4,092,865
Administrative Salaries $ 153,823 $ 146,780 $ 7043 § 99,235 § 255,352 $ 108,572
Auditing Fees 25,000 19,000 6,000 18,750 27,950 8,950
Management Fees 100,148 95,810 4,338 105,294 164,246 68,436
Bookkeeping Fees - - - - - -
Employee Benefits Contributions - Admin 63,917 60,477 (6,559) 134,200 103,960 43,483
Office Expenses 85,529 104,100 (18,571) 90,323 154,800 50,700
Legal Expense - - - - - -
Travel - - - 920 - -
Other 16 15,400 (15,384) 5,318 26,400 11,000
Tenant Services - Other - - - - - -
Water - 210 (210) 209 360 150
Electricity - 910 (910) 893 1,560 650
Gas 107 840 (733) 56 1,440 600
Other Utilities Expense 285 - 285 - - -
Ordinary Maintenance and Operations - Materic - 2,260 (2,260) - 3,660
Ordinary Maintenance and Operations - Contra: 19,088 2,436 16,652 19,440 4,176 -
Protective services - Other Contract Costs 209 250 (41) 261 500 250
Property Insurance - - - - - -
Liability Insurance 10,482 9,899 583 9,414 16,970 7,071
Workers Compensation 10,434 4,531 5,904 4,330 6,338 1,808
All Other Insurance 334 828 (494)
Other General Expenses 14,893 11,340 3,553 17,818 19,440 8,100
Compensated Absences - - - -
Housing Assistance Payments 5,693,304 5,248,159 445,145 5,348,619 8,996,844 3,748,685
Bad Debt - Tenant Rents - - - -
Interest Expense - - - -
Total Operating Expenses $ 6167570 $ 5723230 $ 444340 $ 5855081 $§ 9783997 $ 4,060,767

Net Income (Loss) $ (524,182) $ 6,781 ¢ (630,963) $ 204755 § 38879 § 32,098




Lansing Housing Commission

Budget vs. Actual

Hildebrandt

For the Period Ending January 31, 2018

YTD Amount YTDBudget  YTDVariance  Prior YTD Actual  Annual Budget Rgz‘:;‘:t"g
Tenant Rental Revenue $ 221,359 $ 248,087 § (26,728) $ 242,199 §$ 425292 § 177,205
Tenant Revenue - Other 18,070 13,145 4,925 14,475 22,640 9,495
Total Tenant Revenue $ 239,429 $ 261,232 § (21.803) $ 256674 $ 447932 $ 186,700
HUD PHA Operating Grants 685,898 626,876 59,022 662,767 1,074,644 447,768
CFP Operational Income 14,249 40,000 (25,751) 139,059 40,000 -
Fraud Recovery and Other 2,214 8,126 (5.912) 2,335 11,252 3,126
Total Operating Revenue $ 941,791 $ 936,234 § 5557 § 1,060,835 § 1,673,828 § 637,594
Administrative Salaries $ 47,467 $ 47610 § (143) $ 41,279 § 82524 § 34,914
Auditing Fees 5,000 4,000 1,000 3,750 4,000 -
Management Fees 73,410 72,624 786 110,449 123,922 51,208
Bookkeeping Fees 11,200 11,078 123 11,318 18,990 7,913
Employee Benefits Contributions - Admin 22,430 21,052 1,377 30,103 36,159 15,107
Office Expenses 24,994 22,630 2,364 25,112 32,935 10,305
Legal 12,011 15,272 (3,261) 8,963 24,639 9,367
Travel 380 - 380 192 - -
Other (733) 1,800 (2,533) (7.327) 2,400 600
Tenant Services - Other 10,390 17,360 (6,970) 3,585 29,760 12,400
Water 59,763 65,486 (5.723) 72,955 111,164 45,678
Electricity 21,104 16,835 4,269 33,296 28,860 12,025
Gas 17,279 16,450 829 21,183 33,393 16,943
Other Utilities Expense - 9,100 (9,100) - 9,100 -
Ordinary Maintenance and Operations - Labor 50,657 84,565 (33,908) 58,669 146,580 62,015
Ordinary Maintenance and Operations - Material 26,687 32,504 (5,817) 63,066 56,664 24,160
Ordinary Maintenance and Operations - Contrac 343,582 160,413 183,169 125,459 281,708 121,295
Employee Benefits Contributions - Ordinary 28,662 33,206 (4,544) 83,185 57,048 23,842
Protective Services - Other Contract Costs 2,251 2,149 102 1,943 3,684 1,535
Property Insurance 25,635 18,407 7,228 17,330 31,555 13,148
Liability Insurance 6,990 6,604 385 6,279 11,322 4,717
Workers Compensation 1,419 1,911 (492) 1,832 3,275 1,365
All Other Insurance 2,320 1,162 1,158 1,163 1,992 830
Other General Expenses 28,651 16,226 12,425 46,924 32,016 15,790
Compensated Absences - - -
Payment in Lieu of Taxes 12,147 14,302 (2,155) 11,375 24,108 9,806
Bad debt - Tenant Rents 8,504 6,300 2,204 7,400 10,800 4,500
Interest Expense 18,387 18,359 28 19,515 31,029 12,670
Total Operating Expenses $ 860,584 $ 717,405 § 143,179 $ 799,000 $ 1,229628 $ 512,223
Net Income (Loss) $ 81,206 $ 218829 § (137,623) % 261835 $ 344200 9 125,371




Lansing Housing Commission

Budget vs. Actual

LaRoy Froh

For the Period Ending January 31, 2018

YTD Amount YTD Budget YTD Variance Prior YTD Actual Annual Budget R;':::::::g
Tenant Rental Revenue $ 220,083 $ 248227 $ (28,164) $ 235377 $ 425532 $ 177,305
Tenant Revenue - Other 18,645 10,615 8,030 15,534 18,720 8,105
Total Tenant Revenue $ 238,708 $ 258842 § (20,134) _$ 250910 _§ 444252 185,410
HUD PHA Operating Grants 609,816 588,714 21,102 602,097 1,009,224 420,510
CFP Operational Income 14,249 40,000 (25,751) 142,208 40,000 -
Fraud Recovery and Other 3,039 8,126 (5,087) 4,118 11,252 3,126
Total Operating Revenue $ 865,812 $ 895682 § (29,870) $ 999333 § 1,504,728 § 609,046
Administrative Salaries $ 24,009 $ 53,123 § (29,114) $ 39927 § 92,080 § 38,957
Auditing Fees 5,000 4,000 1,000 3,750 4,900 900
Management Fees 69,871 70,215 (344) 105,069 119,811 49,596
Bookkeeping Fees 10,659 10,710 (51) 10,673 18,360 7,650
Employee Benefits Contributions - Admin 9,913 17,191 (7,278) 34,344 29,548 12,357
Office Expenses 24,270 20,795 3475 22,702 37,091 16,296
Legal 12,099 18,284 (6,185) 7,759 31,344 13,060
Travel - 581 (681) 428 996 415
Other 20,172 4,823 156,349 5,756 8,268 3,445
Tenant Services - Other 11,089 16,660 (5,571) 2,300 28,560 11,900
Water 39,107 38,789 318 37,005 66,495 27,706
Electricity 22,791 24,759 (1,988) 25,364 42,444 17,685
Gas 16,649 28,900 (12,251) 19,917 51,300 22,400
Other Utilities Expense 11,316 13,416 (2,100) 11,611 13,713 297
Ordinary Maintenance and Operations - Labor 63,759 83,475 (19,716) 58,296 140,002 56,527
Ordinary Maintenance and Operations - Material 47,682 83,591 (35,909) 87,739 143,656 60,065
Ordinary Maintenance and Operations - Contrac 299,453 150,949 148,504 159,026 260,418 109,469
Employee Benefits Contributions - Ordinary 38,624 49,871 (11,246) 121,650 85,256 35,385
Protective Services - Other Contract Costs 2,065 - 2,085 2,297 - -
Property Insurance 28,931 26,079 2,852 24,360 44,706 18,628
Liability Insurance 8,817 8,248 568 7,871 14,140 5,892
Workers Compensation 1,584 1,911 (327) 1,866 3,275 1,365
All Other Insurance 2,816 - 2,816 1,508 - -
Other General Expenses 26,370 17,008 9,362 51,183 26,228 9,220
Compensated Absences - - - - -
Payment in Lieu of Taxes 13,247 14,878 (1,631) 14,323 25,329 10,451
Bad debt - Tenant Rents 9,055 7,000 2,055 9,862 12,000 5,000
Interest Expense 10,861 10,843 18 11,528 18,327 7,484
Total Operating Expenses $ 830,208 $ 776,098 % 54,110 _$ 878,113 _§ 1,318,248 8 542,150
Net Income (Loss) $ 35,604 $ 119,584 § (83,980) § 121,220 § 186480 § 66,896




Lansing Housing Commission

Budget vs. Actual

Mt. Vernon

For the Period Ending January 31, 2018

YTD Amount YTD Budget YTD Variance Prior YTD Actual Annual Budget Rg'::;:t" 9
Tenant Rental Revenue $ 196,815 $ 218,393 § (21,578) 241297 $ 374388 % 155,995
Tenant Revenue - Other 19,938 9,318 10,620 11,761 16,113 6,795
Total Tenant Revenue $ 216,753 $ 227711 § (10,959) 253,058 § 390,501 $ 162,790
HUD PHA Operating Grants 503,381 473,942 29,439 501,349 812,472 338,530
CFP Operational Income 14,249 40,000 (25,751) 125,660 40,000 -
Fraud Recovery and Other 5,777 8,126 (2,349) 3,546 11,252 3,126
Total Operating Revenue $ 740,160  $ 749,779 $ (9.620) 883614 § 1254225 § 504,446
Administrative Salaries $ 49,518 $ 46,099 $ 3,419 32375 § 79905 $ 33,808
Auditing Fees 5,000 4,000 1,000 3,750 4,000 -
Management Fees 66,871 66,773 98 100,647 113,938 47,165
Bookkeeping Fees 10,202 10,185 17 10,276 17,460 7,275
Employee Benefits Contributions - Admin 18,989 20,785 (1,796) 25,727 35,699 14,914
Office Expenses 26,304 32,172 (5,868) 26,250 52,229 20,057
Legal 11,415 11,956 (541) 8,238 20,496 8,540
Travel 349 - 349 98 - -
Other 2,331 4,500 (2,169) 15,563 4,500 -
Tenant Services - Other 10,350 15,860 (5.510) 3,744 26,960 11,100
Water 53,564 50,868 2,698 44,727 85,936 35,068
Electricity 25,154 24,000 1,154 17,760 39,400 15,400
Gas 16,732 24,300 (7,568) 22,420 47,200 22,800
Other Utilities Expense 5,644 6,000 (356) 5,918 6,000 -
Ordinary Maintenance and Operations - Labor 48,331 85,656 (37,325) 50,551 148,470 62,814
Ordinary Maintenance and Operations - Materiz 36,060 23,059 13,001 48,273 39,529 16,470
Ordinary Maintenance and Operations - Contra. 192,600 145,845 46,755 159,204 246,800 100,955
Employee Benefits Contributions - Ordinary 27,433 43,044 (15,611) 87,689 73,914 30,871
Protective Services - Other Contract Costs 1,355 1,400 (45) 1,265 2,400 1,000
Property Insurance 24,625 20,707 3,918 19,469 35,498 14,791
Liability Insurance 8,507 7,837 669 7,522 13,435 5,598
Workers Compensation 2,031 2,552 (522) 3,887 4,375 1,823
All Other Insurance 2,500 - 2,500 1,198 - -
Other General Expenses 26,149 13,678 12,471 39,070 23,448 9,770
Compensated Absences - - - - - -
Paymentin Lieu of Taxes 9,488 11,487 (1,999) 14,855 19,439 7,952
Bad debt - Tenant Rents 6,489 4,354 2,135 7,837 7.464 3,110
Interest Expense 11,032 11,015 17 11,709 18,616 7.601
Total Operating Expenses $ 699,024 $ 688,133 §$ 10,892 770024 $ 1,167,112 $ 478,979
Net Income (Loss) $ 41,136 $ 61647 $ (20,511) 113590 § 87113 § 25,466




Lansing Housing Commission

Budgst vs. Actual

South Washington Park

For the Period Ending January 31, 2018

YTD Amount YTD Budget YTD Variance Prior YTD Actual Annual Budget R;'::;’::‘g
Tenant Rental Revenue $ 199,243 $ 202,993 § (3,750) 215483 § 347,988 § 144,995
Tenant Revenue - Other 15,520 10,600 4,920 13,132 18,000 7,400
Total Tenant Revenue $ 214,763 $ 213593 § 1,170 228615 § 365988 & 152,395
HUD PHA Operating Grants 325,976 377,865 (51.889) 425,809 647,768 269,903
CFP Operational Income 14,249 100,000 (85,751) 123,683 100,000 -
Fraud Recovery and Other 5,466 3,266 2,200 5,096 6,492 3,226
Total Operating Revenue $ 560,454 $ 894,724 § (134,270) 783,204 $ 1,120,248 § 425,524
Administrative Salaries $ 47,724 $ 49,356 § (1,631) 69,712 $ 85549 § 36,194
Auditing Fees 5,000 4,000 1,000 3,750 4,000 -
Management Fees 65,986 65,396 590 95,269 111,589 46,193
Bookkeeping Fees 10,067 9,975 92 9,556 17,100 7,125
Employee Benefits Contributions - Admin 21,380 25,889 (4,509) 40,643 44,453 18,564
Office Expenses 22,103 27,151 (5,048) 28,430 45,741 18,590
Legal 17,514 17,675 (161) 14,131 30,300 12,625
Travel - - - 692 - -
Other 6,004 - 6,004 (691) - -
Tenant Services - Other 8,079 9,800 (1,721) 8,357 16,800 7,000
Water 106,961 53,550 53,411 54,848 91,800 38,250
Electricity 60,414 41,300 19,114 43,074 70,800 29,500
Gas 20,406 30,000 (9.594) 21,916 51,000 21,000
Other Utilities Expense 1,295 1,397 (101) 1,140 1,652 255
Ordinary Maintenance and Operations - Labor 88,936 101,460 (12,524) 95,806 175,864 74,404
Ordinary Maintenance and Operations - Materia! 32,554 37,465 (4,911) 49,092 63,420 25,955
Ordinary Maintenance and Operations - Contrac 61,576 51,115 10,461 112,064 86,890 35,775
Employee Benefits Contributions - Ordinary 41,201 42,888 (1.687) 110,310 73,670 30,782
Protective Services - Other Contract Costs 980 980 - 840 1,680 700
Property Insurance 6,560 10,736 (4,176) 10,495 18,404 7,668
Liability Insurance 9,292 8,666 625 8,279 14,857 6,190
Workers Compensation 1,487 3,829 (2,342) 3,424 6,563 2,735
All Other Insurance 1,826 699 1,126 818 1,199 500
Other General Expenses 30,698 16,163 14,535 40,626 27,708 11,545
Compensated Absences - - -
Payment in Lieu of Taxes 723 7.114 (6,391) 7,736 12,239 5,125
Bad debt - Tenant Rents 4,229 7.000 (2,771) 18,281 12,000 5,000
Interest Expense 2,480 2,478 2 2,632 4,188 1,710
Total Operating Expenses $ 675,476 $ 626,081 $ 49,395 851,232 $ 1,060465 $ 443,384
Net Income (Loss) $ (115,022) § 68643 § (183,665) (68,028) $ 50,783 § (17,860)




Lansing Housing Commission

Budget vs. Actual

AMP Consolidated

For the Period Ending January 31, 2018

YTD Amount YTD Budget YTD Variance Prior YTD Actual Annual Budget Rg!::igt;ltng
Tenant Rental Revenue $ 837,479 $ 917,700 § (80,221) $ 934,356 § 1,673,200 $ 655,500
Tenant Revenue - Other 72,173 43,678 28,495 54,901 75473 31,795
Total Tenant Revenue $ 909,652 $ 961,378  § (51,726) § 989,258 ¢ 1,648673 8§ 687,295
HUD PHA Operating Grants 2,125,071 2,067,398 57,675 2,192,022 3,544,108 1,476,712
CFP Operational Income 56,997 220,000 (163,003) 530,611 220,000 -
Fraud Recovery and Other 16,496 27,644 (11,148) 15,096 40,246 12,602
Total Operating Revenue $ 3,108,216 $ 3,276,419 § (168,203) $ 3,726,986 $ 5,453,028 § 2,176,609
Administrative Salaries $ 168,719 $ 196,187 $ (27,468) $ 183,293 § 340,058 $ 143,871
Auditing Fees 20,000 16,000 4,000 15,000 16,900 900
Management Fees 276,138 275,008 1,130 411,435 469,261 194,253
Bookkeeping Fees 42,128 41,948 181 41,823 71,810 29,963
Employee Benefits Contributions - Administrative 72,712 84,918 (12,205) 130,817 145,859 60,941
Office Expenses 97,672 102,748 (5,076) 102,494 167,996 65,248
Legal Expense 53,039 63,187 (10,148) 39,090 106,779 43,592
Travel 729 581 148 1,410 996 415
Other 27,773 11,123 16,650 13,301 15,168 4,045
Tenant Services - Other 39,908 59,680 (19,772) 17,986 102,080 42,400
Water 259,394 208,693 50,701 209,536 355,395 146,702
Electricity 129,463 106,894 22,569 119,494 181,504 74,610
Gas 71,066 99,650 (28,584) 85,437 182,893 83,243
Other Utilities Expense 18,255 29,912 (11,657) 18,669 30,464 552
Ordinary Maintenance and Operations - Labor 251,684 355,156 (103,472) 263,323 610,916 255,760
Ordinary Maintenance and Operations - Material 142,984 176,619 (33,635) 248,170 303,269 126,650
Ordinary Maintenance and Operations - Contrac 897,211 508,322 388,889 565,753 875,816 367,494
Employee Benefits Contributions - Ordinary 135,921 169,009 (33,088) 402,834 289,888 120,879
Protective Services - Other Contract Costs 6,650 4,529 2,121 6,345 7,764 3,235
Property Insurance 85,750 75,929 9,822 71,654 130,163 54,235
Liability Insurance 33,604 31,356 2,248 29,952 53,754 22,397
Workers Compensation 6,520 10,202 (3.682) 11,008 17,489 7,287
All Other Insurance 9,462 1,861 7,600 4,688 3,191 1,330
Other General Expenses 111,868 63,075 48,793 177,804 109,400 46,325
Compensated Absences - - - - - -
Payments in Lieu of Taxes 35,604 47,781 (12,177) 48,289 81,114 33,333
Bad debt - Tenant Rents 28,277 24,654 3,623 43,380 42,264 17,610
Interest Expense 42,760 42,695 65 45,384 72,160 29,465
Total Operating Expenses $ 3,085,292 $ 2,807,716 & 257576 $ 3.208.369 _§ 4,784452 $ 1,976,736
Net Income (Loss) $ 42924 § 468,703 § (425,779) § 428617 § 668,576 $ 199,873




Lansing Housing Commission
5005 Central Office Cost Center
Balance Sheet for January 2018

TOTAL LIABILITES & EQUITY

Period Amount Balance
ASSETS
5005-0000-111105 LHC-Payroll Account (2,270.58) 74,363.31
5005-0000-111111 Chase Checking 120,316.87 725,193.99
5005-1010-115700 Intercompany (24,501.38) (8,593.35)
5005-1020-115700 Intercompany (25,737.51) (9,815.86)
5005-1080-115700 Intercompany (27,745.70) (14,303.16)
5005-1090-115700 Intercompany (14,940.02) (5,525.00)
5005-4001-115700 Intercompany - 879,197.00
5005-8001-115700 Intercompany (14,242.93) (657.17)
5005-8002-115700 Intercompany (2,805.00) 10,595.92
5005-8005-115700 Intercompany 3,067.50 (9,944.67)
5005-8010-115700 Intercompany (375.50) 4,825.93
5005-8021-115700 Intercompany - 1.00
5005-9101-115700 Intercompany - 46,171.67
5005-0000-121100 Prepaid Insurance (1,934.97) 9,705.39
5005-0000-140000 Land - 190,000.00
5005-0000-144000 Construction in Progress - 19,100.00
5005-0000-146000 Dwelling Structures - 718,870.74
5005-0000-146500 Dwelling Equipment - Ranges & - 364,287.34
5005-0000-148100 Accumulated Depreciation-Build - (865,420.56)
5005-0000-150102 Investmentin OG - 237,253.00
5005-0000-150300 Deferred Outflow - MERS - 126,073.00

TOTAL ASSETS 8,830.78 2,491,478.52
LIABILITIES
5005-0000-200000 OPEB Liability - 190,152.00
5005-0000-200300 Pension Liability - 91,608.00
5005-0000-210000 Construction Costs Payabe - 16,745.00
5005-0000-211100 Accounts Payable - -
5005-0000-211343 Accounts Payable Misc - -
5005-0000-211704 Health Insurance W/H 969.40 6,557.31
5005-0000-212000 Accrued Payroll - 12,756.12
5005-0000-213400 Utitity Accrual - 975.36
5005-0000-213500 Accrued Comp Absences - Curr - 4,298.98
5005-0000-214000 Accrued Comp Absences - non curr - 24,360.88
5005-0000-224000 Tenant Prepaid Rent - 1,210.00
5005-0000-260700 Note Payable Non Curr - Davenport (4,099.04) 397,240.32
5005-0000-260701 Note Payable - Curr - Davenport - 49,140.51
TOTAL LIABILITIES (3,129.64) 795,044.48
EQUITY
5005-0000-280100 Invest C - 262,161.00
5005-0000-280500 Unrestricted Net Assets - 322,679.00
5005-0000-282000 Income and Expense Clearing 11,960.42 1,345,500.75
5005-3000-282000 Income and Expense Clearing - (233,906.71)
TOTAL EQUITY 11,960.42 1,696,434.04

8,830.78 2,491,478.52



ASSETS

8001-0000-111111
8002-0000-111111
8004-0000-111111
8002-0000-112954
8001-5005-115700
8002-50056-115700
8004-5005-115700
8001-0000-121100
8001-0000-146500
8001-0000-148100
8002-0000-148100
8001-0000-150300

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES

8001-0000-200000
8001-0000-200300
8001-0000-210000
8001-0000-211100
8002-0000-211100
8002-8002-211100
8001-0000-211343
8001-0000-212000
8001-0000-213400
8001-0000-213500
8001-0000-214000

TOTAL LIABILITIES

EQUITY

8001-0000-280500
8001-0000-282000
8001-0003-282000
8001-3000-282000
8002-0000-280100
8002-0000-280400
8002-0000-280500
8002-0000-282000
8002-8002-282000
8004-0000-282000
8004-8004-282000

TOTAL EQUITY

Lansing Housing Commission
Housing Choice Voucher
Balance Sheet for January 2018

Chase Checking

Chase Checking

Chase Checking

Accounts Receivables-Misc
Intercompany

Intercompany

Intercompany

Prepaid Insurance

Dwelling Equipment - Ranges &
Accumulated Depreciation-Build
Accumulated Depreciation-Build
Deferred Qutflow - MERS

OPERB Liability

Pension Liability

Construction Costs Payabe
Accounts Payable

Accounts Payable

Accounts Payable

Accounts Payable Misc
Accrued Payroll

Utility Accrual

Accrued Comp Absences - Curr
Accrued Comp Absences - non curr

Unrestricted Net Assets
Income and Expense Clearing
Income and Expense Clearing
Income and Expense Clearing
Invest C

Restricted Net Assets
Unrestricted Net Assets
Income and Expense Clearing
Income and Expense Clearing
Income and Expense Clearing
Income and Expense Clearing

TOTAL LIABILITES & EQUITY

Period Amount

Balance

(21,941.24)
10,150.86

14,242.93
2,805.00

(1,547.25)

341,296.23
542,451.92

557.17
(10,595.92)

5,761.19

27,586.00
(27,596.00)

185,626.00

3,710.30

1,065,096.59

551,357.00
254,124.00
24,655.00

13,510.15
16.89
3,947.61
22,369.76

869,980.41

(9,245.56)

12,955.86

(326,093.99)
(7,476.91)
(1,038.20)
(2,.130.72)

3,047.00
152,357.00
453,953.00

31,530,454.80
(31,607,955.80)

293,299.67
(293,299.67)

3.710.30

195,116.18

3,710.30

1,065,096.59



ASSETS

1020-0000-111102
1020-0000-111111
1020-0000-112200
1020-0000-112201
1020-0000-112500
1020-0000-114500
1020-5005-115700
1020-0000-116201
1020-0000-121100
1020-0000-140000
1020-0000-144000
1020-3000-144000
1020-0000-146000
1020-1020-146000
1020-0000-146500
1020-1020-146500
1020-0000-148100
1020-1020-148100
1020-1020-148300
1020-0000-150300

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES

1020-0000-200000
1020-0000-200300
1020-0000-210000
1020-0000-211100
1020-0000-211400
1020-0000-211999
1020-0000-212000
1020-0000-213400
1020-0000-213500
1020-0000-213700
1020-0000-214000
1020-0000-260600
1020-0000-260601

TOTAL LIABILITIES

EQUITY

1020-0000-280100
1020-0000-280500
1020-0000-282000
1020-1020-282000
1020-3000-282000

TOTAL EQUITY

Lansing Housing Commission

1020 Hildebrandt Park

Balance Sheet for January 2018

Cash-Security Deposits

Chase Checking

Accounts Receivable

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts
Accounts Receivable HUD
Accrued Interest Receivable
Intercompany

Investments Savings

Prepaid Insurance

Land

Construction in Progress
Construction in Progress
Dwelling Structures

Dwelling Structures

Dwelling Equipment - Ranges &
Dwelling Equipment - Ranges &
Accumulated Depreciation-Build
Accumulated Depreciation-Build
Accumulated Depreciation-Equip
Deferred Outflow - MERS

OPEB Liability

Pension Liability

Construction Costs Payabe
Accounts Payable

Tenant Security Deposits
Tenant Refunds

Accrued Payroll

Utility Accrual

Accrued Comp Absences - Curr
Payment in Lieu of Taxes

Accrued Comp Absences - non curr

Note Payable Non Curr - PNC
Note Payable - Curr - PNC

Invest C

Unrestricted Net Assets
Income and Expense Clearing
Income and Expense Clearing
income and Expense Clearing

TOTAL LIABILITES & EQUITY

Period Amount

Balance

(49,837.47)
(6,187.18)
442.41

25,737.51

(5,146.02)

23,624.00

371,144.95

5,627.35
(500.00)

31.04
9,815.86
128,036.35
40,727.58
389,091.00
14,683.83
1,296,329.60
13,191,345.50
640,279.00
106,382.59
242,488.00
(10,933,555.23)
(118,118.00)
(44,734.00)
150,798.00

(34,990.75)

5,513,497.42

(457.00)
29.00

2,023.00

(4,360.11)

201,724.00
280,324.00
20,029.00
31,176.19
8,167.18
7,122.76
11,891.99
2,627.17
32,716.61
14,887.27
700,429.19
51,833.85

(2,765.11)

1,362,929.21

(32,225.64)

3,764,889.00
(84,554.50)
(1,037,879.10)
(45,146.00)

1,553,258.81

(32,225.64)

4,150,568.21

(34,990.75)

5,513,497.42




Lansing Housing Commission
1080 LaRoy Froh Townhomes
Balance Sheet for January 2018

Period Amount Balance
ASSETS
1080-0000-111102 Cash-Security Deposits - 28,261.00
1080-0000-111111 Chase Checking (53,130.76) 734,195.95
1080-0000-112200 Accounts Receivable 700.50 13,249.23
1080-0000-112201 Allowance for Doubtful Accounts - (500.00)
1080-0000-112500 Accounts Receivable HUD - -
1080-0000-114500 Accrued Interest Receivable - 31.04
1080-5005-115700 Intercompany 27,745.70 14,303.16
1080-0000-116201 Investments Savings - 128,036.35
1080-0000-121100 Prepaid Insurance (5,879.60) 41,113.94
1080-0000-140000 Land - 499,084.00
1080-3000-144000 Construction in Progress - 756,674.55
1080-0000-146000 Dwelling Structures - 11,805,229.11
1080-1080-146000 Dwelling Structures - 520,795.00
1080-0000-146500 Dwelling Equipment - Ranges & - 26,476.43
1080-0000-148100 Accumulated Depreciation-Build - (9,466,767.57)
1080-1080-148100 Accumulated Depreciation-Build - (96,075.00)
1080-0000-150300 Deferred Outflow - MERS - 194,968.00
TOTAL ASSETS (30,564.16) 5,199,075.19
LIABILITIES
1080-0000-200000 OPEB Liability - 324,823.00
1080-0000-200300 Pension Liability - 146,984.00
1080-0000-210000 Construction Costs Payabe - 25,896.00
1080-0000-211100 Accounts Payable - 42.32
1080-0000-211400 Tenant Security Deposits 365.00 35,689.06
1080-0000-211999 Tenant Refunds (1,139.00) 4,703.66
1080-0000-212000 Accrued Payroll - 5,077.12
1080-0000-213400 Utility Accrual - 12,846.41
1080-0000-213500 Accrued Comp Absences - Curr - 855.38
1080-0000-213700 Payment in Lieu of Taxes 1,494.00 36,938.26
1080-0000-214000 Accrued Comp Absences - non curr - 4,847.13
1080-0000-260600 Note Payable Non Curr - PNC (2,575.51) 413,741.90
1080-0000-260601 Note Payable - Curr - PNC - 30,618.13
TOTAL LIABILITIES (1,855.51) 1,043,062.37
EQUITY
1080-0000-280100 Invest C - 4,031,104.00
1080-0000-280500 Unrestricted Net Assets - 447,889.50
1080-0000-282000 Income and Expense Clearing (28,708.65) (1,279,958.42)
1080-1080-282000 Income and Expense Clearing - (26,635.00)
1080-3000-282000 Income and Expense Clearing - 983,612.74
TOTAL EQUITY (28,708.65) 4,156,012.82

TOTAL LIABILITES & EQUITY

(30,564.16) 5,199,075.19



ASSETS
1010-0000-111102
1010-0000-111111
1010-0000-112200
1010-0000-112201
1010-0000-112500
1010-0000-114500
1010-5005-115700
1010-0000-116201
1010-0000-121100
1010-0000-140000
1010-3000-144000
1010-0000-146000
1010-1010-146000
1010-0000-146500
1010-1010-146500
1010-3000-146500

Lansing Housing Commission
1010 Mt. Vernon Park
Balance Sheet for January 2018

Cash-Security Deposits

Chase Checking

Accounts Receivable
Allowance for Doubtful Accounts
Accounts Receivable HUD
Accrued Interest Receivable
Intercompany

Investments Savings

Prepaid Insurance

Land

Construction in Progress
Dwelling Structures

Dwelling Structures

Dwelling Equipment - Ranges &
Dwelling Equipment - Ranges &
Dwelling Equipment - Ranges &

1010-0000-148100 Accumulated Depreciation-Build
1010-1010-148100 Accumulated Depreciation-Build
1010-1010-148300 Accumulated Depreciation-Equip

1010-0000-150300 Deferred Outflow - MERS
TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES
1010-0000-200000 OPEB Liability
1010-0000-200300 Pension Liability
1010-0000-210000 Construction Costs Payabe
1010-0000-211100 Accounts Payable
1010-0000-211400 Tenant Security Deposits
1010-0000-211999 Tenant Refunds
1010-0000-212000 Accrued Payroll
1010-0000-213400 Utility Accrual

1010-0000-213500 Accrued Comp Absences - Curr

1010-0000-213700 Payment in Lieu of Taxes

1010-0000-214000 Accrued Comp Absences - non curr

1010-0000-260600 Note Payable Non Curr - PNC
1010-0000-260601 Note Payable - Curr - PNC
TOTAL LIABILITIES

EQUITY
1010-0000-280100 Invest C
1010-0000-280500 Unrestricted Net Assets
1010-0000-282000 Income and Expense Clearing
1010-0003-282000 Income and Expense Clearing
1010-1010-282000 Income and Expense Clearing
1010-1010-282000 Income and Expense Clearing
1010-3000-2820C0 Income and Expense Clearing
TOTAL EQUITY

TOTAL LIABILITES & EQUITY

Period Amount

Balance

(41,354.82)
(3,.290.18)
(0.31)

24,501.38

(5,.229.10)

15,825.00
500,087.11
8,382.75
(500.00)

31.04
8,593.35
128,036.35
39,429.78
245,012.00
191,307.90
12,837,212.63
501,502.00
405,196.70
27,589.00
8,823.96
(10,521,447.10)
(92,513.00)
(5.089.00)
180,071.00

(25,373.03)

1,063.00

1,819.00

(2,616.07)

4,477,551.47

385,367.00
298,810.00
23,917.00

32,116.30
7,525.59
7,617.05

14,675.35
1,912.72

30,134.80

10,838.78

420,257.53

31,100.31

255.93

1,264,272.43

(25.,628.96)

2,433,904.00
443,085.50
(1,176,457.25)
(77.99)
(320.14)
(19,356.80)
1,532,501.72

(25,628.96)

3.213,279.04

(25,373.03)

4,477,551.47




ASSETS
1090-0000-111102
1080-0000-111111
1090-0000-112200
1090-0000-112201
1090-0000-112500
1090-0000-114500
1090-5005-115700
1090-0000-116201
1090-0000-121100
10980-0000-140000
1090-3000-144000
1090-0000-146000
1090-1090-146000
1090-0000-146500
1080-0000-147000
1090-0000-148100
1090-1090-148100
1090-0000-150300

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES
1090-0000-200000
1090-0000-200300
1090-0000-210000
1090-0000-211100
1090-0000-211400
1090-0000-211999
1090-0000-212000
1090-0000-213400
1090-0000-213500
1090-0000-213700
1090-0000-214000
1090-0000-260600
1090-0000-260601

TOTAL LIABILITIES

EQUITY
1090-0000-280100
1090-0000-280500
1090-0000-282000
1090-1090-282000
1090-3000-282000

TOTAL EQUITY

Lansing Housing Commission
1090 South Washington Park
Balance Sheet for January 2018

Cash-Security Deposits

Chase Checking

Accounts Receivable
Allowance for Doubtful Accounts
Accounts Receivable HUD
Accrued Interest Receivable
Intercompany

Investments Savings

Prepaid Insurance

Land

Construction in Progress
Dwelling Structures

Dwelling Structures

Dwelling Equipment - Ranges &
Nondwellin Structures
Accumulated Depreciation-Build
Accumulated Depreciation-Build
Deferred Outflow - MERS

OPEB Liability

Pension Liability

Construction Costs Payabe
Accounts Payable

Tenant Security Deposits
Tenant Refunds

Accrued Payroll

Utility Accrual

Accrued Comp Absences - Curr
Payment in Lieu of Taxes
Accrued Comp Absences - non curr
Note Payable Non Curr - PNC
Note Payable - Curr - PNC

Invest C

Unrestricted Net Assets
Income and Expense Clearing
Income and Expense Clearing
Income and Expense Clearing

TOTAL LIABILITES & EQUITY

Period Amount

Balance

(98,926.35)
(2,092.00)

14,940.02
(2,190.46)

54,322.20

20,054.08

192,952.73

4,448.06
(500.00)

31.04
5,625.00
128,036.36
8,554.63
231,584.00
152,282.43
9,408,534.31
118,722.00
131,148.45
13,600.40
(7.226,204.42)
(21,902.00)
179,703.00

(33,946.59)

3,346,570.07

464.00
(96.00)

(306.00)

(588-.10)

200,673.00
291,203.00
23,868.00
30,971.50
10,802.18
10,307.82
39,209.42
3,886.03

(939.52)
22,020.80
94,476.52
6,991.54

(526.10)

733,470.29

(33,420.49)

3,083,846.00
117,903.50

(1,054,737.04)

(6,072.00)
472,159.32

(33,420.49)

2,613,099.78

33,946.59

3,346,570.07
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February 28, 2018
HONORABLE MEMBERS IN SESSION

Lansing Housing Commission
419 Cherry St.
Lansing Michigan 48933

SUBJECT:
January Housing Choice Voucher Monthly Report

CONTACT PERSON:
Kim Shirey
HCV Supervisor

Family Self Sufficiency:

The FSS Coordinator sent out of 38 letters to offer orientation for the FSS Program.
They were instructed to attend an orientation on either 2/14/18 or 3/2/18. After these
orientations the FSS Coordinator will determine eligibility and actual interest for the
program and will then begin to schedule contract signings.

HCV Orientations:
LHC had one (1) orientation during the month of January 2018 and seventeen (17)
vouchers issued. There are approximately 150 people out searching.

One (1) VASH orientation was also held for the month of January, and twelve (12)
Vouchers were issued.

Waiting List:
There are currently 200 applicants left on the waiting list. It is anticipated that this list
will be exhausted late spring.

Department Initiatives:

In the HCV Program there are currently 1,783 vouchers housed for all of its programs.
Fifty-two participants are with the Shelter Plus Care Program (S+C), 83 are housed
under the Permanent Supportive Housing Program (PSH), and 136 are housed under
the HUD Veterans Affairs Supportive Housing (VASH). 1,512 are housed under the
regular Housing Choice Voucher Program.

TDD/TTY #: 1-800-545-1833 Ext. 919 @ "Equal Housing Opportunity” [(b"
Lansing Housing Commission Board Meeting February 28, 2018
Housing Choice Voucher Report January 2018
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Voucher Utilization

December Voucher Program Total Units 1,863
December Traditional HCV Utilization 1,636
December % Utilized Units 88%
January Voucher Program Total Units 1,863
January Traditional HCV Utilization 1,648
January % Utilized Units 88%

Voucher Disbursement

HUD December HAP Disbursement $777,158
LHC December HAP/UAP Disbursement $907,677
% Voucher Funding Utilization 116%
HUD January HAP Disbursement $ 828,553
LHC January HAP/UAP Disbursement $ 881,171
% Voucher Funding Utilization 106%
HUD Held Reserves as of July 2017 $1,158,836

Based on HUD standards LHC’s Voucher utilization is Optimized. However, LHC has
determined the number of units leased can be increased by approximately 214 units.
The funding to pay for the increased utilization will come from HUD held reserves.

SEMAP Indicators

Indicator 1- Selection from the Waiting List

This indicator measures whether LHC has written policies in its administrative plan for
selecting applicants from the waiting list. This indicator is not scored by PIC but is
based on an internal review. LHC is on track to receive all points for this indicator out
of a possible 15 as it does have written policy.

Waiting List
PIC Scoring Internal Scoring
N/A 15

Indicator 2- Rent Reasonableness

LHC has a method for determining the rent (for each unit leased) is reasonable based
on current rents charged for comparable unassisted units. During the month of July, a
quality control was conducted on nine (9) units and approved. This indicator is not
scored by PIC but based on an internal review. LHC is on track to receive all the
points for this indicator which is a possible 20.

TOD/TTY #: 1-800-545-1833 Ext. 919 @ "Equal Housing Opportunity“@

Lansing Housing Commission Board Meeting February 28, 2018
Housing Choice Voucher Report January 2018
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COMMISSION 419 Cherry St., Lansing, MI 48933 Telephone: (517) 487-6550 Fax: (517) 487-6977

Rent Reasonableness

PIC Scoring Internal Scoring

N/A 20

Indicator 3- Determination of Adjusted Income

This indicator measures if, at the time of admission and reexamination, LHC verifies
and correctly determines adjusted annual income for each assisted family, and if LHC
uses the appropriate utility allowance(s). This indicator is not scored in PIC, but is
based on an internal review and scoring. LHC is on track to complete the 26 required
file reviews, per fiscal year, and receive 20 points out of 20 for the fiscal year ending
June 2018.

Adjusted Income

PIC Scoring Internal Scoring

N/A 20

Indicator 4- Utility Allowance

The new Utility Allowances were approved and are effective 05/01/2017. This indicator
is not scored through PIC, but is based on an internal review. Based on the internal
review, LHC would receive five (5) of the possible five (5) points for this indicator by the
end of the fiscal year. The utility allowance study is complete and is on the agenda for
approval at the January 2018 Board Meeting.

Utility Allowance

PIC Scoring Internal Scoring

N/A 5

Indicator 5- HQS Quality Control Inspections

The number of Quality Control Inspections needed for the year is 36. During this
reporting period zero (0) quality control inspections were conducted. A total of zero (0)
conducted so far, this fiscal year. This indictor is not scored by PIC, but is based on
an internal review. Based on the internal review LHC is on track to receive five (5) of
the five (5) possible points.

Quality Control Inspections

PIC Scoring Internal Scoring

N/A 0

TDD/TTY #: 1-800-545-1833 Ext. 919 @ "Equal Housing Oppoﬂunity"‘@
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Indicator 6- HQS Enforcement

Following each HQS inspection of a unit under contract where the unit fails to meet
HQS, any cited life threatening HQS deficiencies are corrected within 24-hours and all
other cited HQS deficiencies are corrected within 30 days. If deficiencies are not
corrected timely LHC stops (abates) HAP payment or terminates the contract. This
indicator is not scored by PIC, but is determined from an internal review. LHC’s
review indicates there were (7) 24-hour deficiencies and (56) 30-day deficiencies. All
corrected, abated, or terminated as necessary.

HQS Enforcement

PIC Scoring Internal Scoring

N/A 10

Indicator 7- Expanding Housing Opportunities

LHC adopted and implemented a written policy to encourage participation by owners
of units located outside areas of poverty and minority concentration. This indicator is
not scored in PIC, but is based on an internal review. As of this reporting period, LHC
records this indicator as receiving five (5) of a possible five (5)

Housing Opportunities

PIC Scoring Internal Scoring

N/A 5

Indicator 8- Payment Standards

This indicator shows whether LHC has adopted a current payment standard schedule
for the voucher program by unit size. During this reporting period, the HCV Payment
Standards were increased to 110%. The current payment standards have received
Board approval. This indicator is not scored by PIC, but is based on an internal
review. As of this reporting period, LHC records indicate a five (5) out of a possible
five (5) points will be received.

The 2017 FMR'’s were approved by the Board to take effect 11/01/2017.

Payment Standards

PIC Scoring Internal Scoring

N/A 8

Indicator 9- Annual Reexamination
This indicator is used to determine if LHC has completed a reexamination for each
participating family at least every 12 months. As of January 31, the reporting rate is
96%. Based on PIC, LHC records this indicator as 10 of a possible 10 points.

Lansing Housing Commission Board Meeting February 28, 2018
Housing Choice Voucher Report January 2018
Page 4 of 6



COMMISSION 419 Cherry St., Lansing, MI 48933 Telephone: (517) 487-6550 Fax: (517) 487-6977

Annual Reexaminations

PIC Scoring Internal Scoring

10 10

Indicator 10- Correct Tenant Rent Calculation

This indicator shows if LHC correctly calculates tenants’ rent and the family share of
the rent to the owner in the voucher program. As of this reporting period, PIC records
indicate LHC will receive 100%. According to PIC records there are no tenant rent
calculation discrepancies to report. Based on PIC, LHC records this indicator as
receiving five (5) of a possible five (5) points.

Correct Tenant Rent

PIC Scoring Internal Scoring

5 5

Indicator 11- Pre-Contract HQS Inspections

This indicator shows if newly leased units pass HQS inspection on or before the
beginning date of the assisted lease and HAP contract. As of this reporting period,
PIC recorded this indicator as receiving 100%. Based on PIC LHC would receive five
(5) of a possible five (5) points.

Pre-Contract HQS

PIC Scoring Internal Scoring

5 5

Indicator 12-Inspections

This indicator shows if LHC has inspected each unit under contract at least bi-
annually. As of this reporting period, PIC recorded this indicator as receiving 100%.
Based on PIC LHC would receive 10 of the possible 10 points.

Inspections

PIC Scoring Internal Scoring

10 10

Indicator 13- Program Utilization

The department utilization rate during this reporting period is 106%. In an effort to
maximize the number of participants that are housed, the program’s utilization rate will
continue to be closely monitored without exceeding funding capacity. SEMAP
certification requires LHC to report the status of efforts in providing Housing Choice
Vouchers and leasing units based on funds awarded by HUD.

TDD/TTY #: 1-800-545-1833 Ext. 919 @ "Equal Housing Opportunity"l_é}_i
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Program Utilization

PIC Scoring Internal Scoring

N/A 20

Indicator 14-Family Self Sufficiency

As of this reporting period, the Family Self Sufficiency (FSS) Program has 38
mandatory slots, 20 slots/households or (65%) are enrolled. SEMAP certification
requires the LHC to report the status of enrollment for the FSS program.

Enroliment and Escrow Accounts are documented by Indicator 14. As of this reporting
period, LHC would receive eight (8) of 10 points.

FSS Enrolliment

PIC Scoring Internal Scoring

N/A 5

Currently 75% of the FSS participants enrolled in the program have escrow accounts.
The maximum allowable points are five (10). LHC is currently doing an internal rating of
eight (8) points.

Participants w/ Escrows

PIC Scoring Internal Scoring

N/A 8

*Please note all PIC data is of 01/31/2018

|
TDD/TTY #: 1-800-545-1833 Ext. 919 @ "Equal Housing Opportunity” (!-7"
Lansing Housing Commission Board Meeting February 28, 2018
Housing Choice Voucher Report January 2018
Page 6 of 6




{GH
G T,
J/\ﬂ\o

COMMISSION 419 Cherry St., Lansing, Ml 48933 Telephone: (517) 487-6550 Fax: (517) 487-6977
February 28, 2018

HONORABLE MEMBERS IN SESSION

Lansing Housing Commission
419 Cherry St.
Lansing Michigan 48933

SUBJECT:
January 2018 Asset Management Monthly Report

CONTACT PERSON:
Martell Armstrong
Executive Director
517-487-6550 Ext. 111

OVERVIEW:

Lansing Housing Commission ("LHC") communities had an overall occupancy rating of
96% (not including the modernization units) at the end of January. LHC has 96%
occupancy including the units that are in modernization. LHC Unit Months Leased
(UML) was 801 (with units in MOD) or 96% occupancy rate. LHC maintained a 96%
occupancy level, which meets the 96% recovery plan occupancy goal.

Mt. Vernon Park occupancy was 95% at the end of January. There were three (3)
households moved in, zero (0) resident moved out's, and zero (0) unit transfer. The UML

was 192 which equals 95%.

Hildebrandt Park occupancy was 95% at the end of January There were three (3)
households moved in, seven (7) resident moved out, and Zero (0) unit transfer's. The
UML was 209 which equals 95%.

LaRoy Froh occupancy was 97% at the end of January. There were six (6)
households moved in, two (2) residents moved out, and three (3) unit transfer’s. The
UML was 206 which equals 97%.

TDD/TTY #: 1-800-545-1833 Ext. 919 "Equal Housing Opportunity"[E
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Monthly Asset Management Report January 2018
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South Washington Park occupancy was 98% at the end of January. There were one
(1) households moved in, three (3) resident moved out, and zero (0) unit transfer.
The UML was 194 which equals 98%.

OCCUPANCY:
e UML Gross :
- Total Occupied 1st | (includin s Soh ¢ | Total
Site | Number | day o?n'l_'o'nth - ( MOD :_g N:g:e “g:‘g Tﬁ:ﬁ;er MOD
| | ofUnits | including | Occupancy | "5 | O¥ | SN 1 ynits
| MODunits | rate) o (e o
Mt Vernon 202 192 - 95% 3 0 0 0
Hildebrandt 220 209 - 95% 3 7 0 0
LaRoy Froh 213 206 9% 6 2 3 0
S. Washington 198 194 98% 1 3 0 0
Totals. | 1833 RO 96% BB 3 0

Rent Collection:

3661697 | $ (7.910.97) | 128% |

Mt Vernon $ 28,706.00 §

Hildebrandt $ 34,382.00 $ 42.899.36 $ (8,517.36) 125%

LaRoy Froh $ 31.555.00 $ 37.598.00 $ (6,043.00) 119%
$ 29,848.00 $ $ (3,607.00)

S. ashingt -
T _

1
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COMMISSION 419 Cherry St., Lansing, Ml 48933 Telephone: (517) 487-6550 Fax: (517) 487-6977

Move Out Analysis:

Move out Reason

Mt. Vernon Hildebrandt Park

LaRoy Froh

St
Washington

Moved Out (Left Area)

5 HCV Accepted

Lease Violation (No Court
action)

1

Evicted - Nonpayment
Judgment

1

Evicted — Nonpayment Writ
Ordered but not executed

Physical Eviction

Criminal Activity

Drug Activity

Rent too high

Transfer

Totals

TDD/TTY #: 1-800-545-1833 Ext. 919 @ "Equal Housing Opportunity” [LL#_\'
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COMMISSION 419 Cherry St., Lansing, Ml 48933 Telephone: (517) 487-6550 Fax: (517) 487-6977

N
C

Mt. Vernon Vacant Unit Status:

2/5/18

Unit |[Make ready Projected Security deposit Vacant date
received
or or Comments or reason for length
of status
Lease actual Lease up
ready date
1338 TBD TBD TBD Structural damage is currently
in repair Now under contract
effective 1-30-18
3866 Make Projected lease-up Offer sent Vacant 2/1-Resident just turned
Ready date 2-28-18 in keys. Scope will be written
2/2. Parts will be ordered 2/5.
3316 Make Projected lease-up Yes Vacant 1/31-Unit was cleaned
Ready date out and scope was written on
2/1. Parts will be ordered 2/5.
2/15/18
1501 Make Projected lease-up Yes Vacant 12/16-Unit is in make
Ready date ready status and is expected to
be complete by 2/7, cleaned by
2/9/18 2/9, and applicant to move in
2/9.
4309 Make Projected lease-up Yes Vacant 12/1-This is unit is
Ready date projected to be ready by 2/5,
cleaned by 2/7, and resident
2/7/18 transferred on 2/7.
1503 Make Projected lease-up Yes Vacant 12/15- Experienced
Ready date major plumbing issues which is

scheduled for repair on 2/2.
Cleaners will clean later that
evening, and Resident is

scheduled to move-in 2/5.

Hildebrandt Park Vacant Unit Status:

TDD/TTY #: 1-800-545-1833 Ext. 919 @ "Equal Housing Opportunity” |Ll¥,\J
Lansing Housing Commission Board Meeting February 28, 2018

Monthly Asset Management Report January 2018

Page 4 of 7




NG HC
ST HOUg,

s gP

COMMISSION 419 Cherry St., Lansing, MI 48933 Telephone: (517) 487-6550 Fax: (517) 487-6977

Unit Make ready Projected Security Vacant date
deposit
or or received Comments or reason for length of
status
Lease ready (actual Lease up
date
2139 Forest MR 2-19 No 12-29 not vacant 30 days
3204-C LR 2-5 Transfer | 12-28 Not vacant 30 days, floors will
Turner begin 1-9-18 Move In (Transfer)
2127 Forest MR 1-12 No 10/13/2017 Contractors assigned
separately, (floors, cleaning,
carpentry) will be
completed date 1/8/18 (Unit
was offered 3x and denied twice,
3« time applicant did not pay security
deposit, processing applicant currently
for next offer waiting on landlord
references)
3118- LR 2-22 Transfer 11/9/2017 Contract work to
B Turner begin Friday (1-12) or Monday (1-15)
3118- MR 2-9 Transfer 11/9/2017 Contract work to
E Turner begin Friday (1-12) or Monday (1-15)
2139 Forest MR 2-15 NO 12-29 Not vacant 30 days
2121 Forest MR 2-28 NO 1-12 Not vacant 30 days
3208-D MR 2-28 NO 1-9 Not vacant 30 days
Turner
811 MR 2-28 NO 1-10 Not vacant 30 days
Pennsylvania
1912 Hoyt MR 2-28 NO 1-2 Not vacant 30 days

TDD/TTY #: 1-800-545-1833 Ext. 919 @ "Equal Housing Opportunity"’Q

Lansing Housing Commission Board Meeting February 28, 2018
Monthly Asset Management Report January 2018

Page 5 of 7



&G HOp,
: s,

?-

LHC

COMMISSION 419 Cherry St., Lansing, MI 48933 Telephone: (517) 487-6550 Fax: (517) 487-6977

1013
Shepard

MR

2-28

NO

1-8 Not vacant 30 days

LaRoy Froh Vacant Unit Status:

Projected or

; Make ready Security deposit |Comments/reason for
Unit actual lease up .
status received length
date
2454 Make ready 2-16-18 Final offer accepted|Vacant 12-1-17. Pipes
and made burst causing
additional rehabbing to
complete
2210 Make ready 2-10-18 1%t offer sent for the [Vacant 12-5-17
3 time.
3622 Lease Ready 2-15-18 13t offer sent Vacant 12-31-17
2707 Make Ready 2-15-18 18 offer sent \Vacant 1-7-18
2452 Make Ready 2-28-18 1%t offer sent Vacant 1-30-18
6020 Make Ready 2-28-18 uT Vacant 1-23-18
2434 Make Ready 2-28-18 18 offer sent Vacant 1-31-18

South Washington Park Vacant Unit Status:

Unit Make ready Projected Security Vacant date
deposit
or or received | Comments or reason for
length of status
Lease ready actual Lease up
date
10500 Lease Ready 2-5-18 yes [Vacant 12-1-17
10307 Make Ready 2-9-18 No

TDD/TTY #: 1-800-545-1833 Ext. 919 @ "Equal Housing Opportunity"k_&i
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COMMISSION 419 Cherry St., Lansing, MI 48933 Telephone: (517) 487-6550 Fax: (517) 487-6977

10109 IMake Ready 2-9-18 No

10131 Make Ready 2-9-18 No

TDD/TTY #: 1-800-545-1833 Ext. 919 @ "Equal Housing Oppodunity"@
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COMMISSION 419 Cherry St., Lansing, Ml 48933 Telephone: (517) 487-6550 Fax: (517) 487-6977

Date of Meeting: February 28, 2018

LHC Board
Sign-In Sheet

Name Organization Phone # E-mail
Anprea ailey | LIPH 51335 - anlorea bA lainhc.op
9145 9
517 ~
'[< w‘r\k)e-.“'in-i CfJ'll [{:Si‘_‘)y L ek 1oy “C)r(sg'i )AH’V\‘S 20 lenshe o9
Marews #ardy LLPY §17- %2:0855 | accush @lonshe: oy
Kim éfwff/g HCV UE7.6243

jimsQ Janshc. o,

e Aack
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